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Mills + Schnoering Architects, PC 
230 S. Broad Street, Suite 1050 
Philadelphia, PA 19102 

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC     
200 Forrestal Road, Suite 3A  
Princeton, NJ 08540          

Telephone: 609.681.2480 
https://msarchitectsllc.com/ 

12 February 2025 

Casetra Thompson, Purchasing and Contract Administration Division 
The City of Delray Beach  
100 NW 1st Avenue  
Delray Beach, FL 33444 

Re: RFQ NO.: 2025-019, Professional Services – Architectural/Engineering Design & Construction 
Administration – Crest Theatre Auditorium Renovations/ Project No. 25-001 

Dear Ms. Thompson: 

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC (M+Sa) is pleased to offer our proposal to design the renovation of the Crest 
Theatre Auditorium. We are very excited by the prospect of assisting the City with this project, which has the 
potential to further strengthen the Crest Theatre and Old School Square as a significant community resource. 

We understand that the Crest Theatre is part of the 1925 Delray High School Building, which was adapted for 
use as a performing arts center in the early 1990s. Within the Auditorium, which has been expanded, the 
original proscenium is a significant historic feature. The current project will build on and complement the work 
that was completed in early 2024 to renovate the lobby and several meeting rooms/classroom spaces. 

We are an 18-person firm based in Princeton, NJ working regionally and nationally, and focused very specifically 
on cultural, educational, and civic projects, many of them in historic settings. We have completed very similar 
projects for a range of performance venues, from the Westport Country Playhouse (Westport, CT) to the 
Wheeler Opera House (Aspen, CO). Performing arts projects are what we collectively feel the most strongly 
connected to and passionate about. 

M+Sa will provide a comprehensive scope of services for the work at the Crest Theatre, maintaining the 
objectives outlined in the RFQ and preserving the character of the Auditorium. The project will receive the full 
attention of our office and will be led by firm principals who will actively participate in all aspects of the work. 
We have invited consultants, including Sarah Ryan Architect, LLC of St. Augustine, to collaborate with us. Our 
consultants bring a creative approach, relevant experience, and an understanding of the importance of 
teamwork.  

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this proposal. This is an exciting project, and we look forward to 
learning more.  

Sincerely, 

Michael R. Schnoering, FAIA 
Partner 
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III. Minimum Qualifications

TAB III – MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

Proposer must be licensed by the Florida Department of Business & Professional Regulation as an 
architectural/engineering firm. 
Please see a copy of current licensure at the end of this tab.

Proposer shall be qualified to perform professional service at the time of submittal as outlined in previous 
sections.
Mills + Schnoering Architects is qualified to perform professional services; please see attached licenses and 
registrations.

Proposer has no reported conflict of interests in relation to this RFQ. 
Mills + Schnoering Architects has no conflict of interests in relation to this RFQ.

Proposer must submit Standard Form 330. 
Please see attached SF 330. Several components of the SF 330 are located in subsequent tabs as requested in 
the RFQ:  SF 330 Section E resumes are located in Tab V; SF 330 Part II forms for each firm are located in Tab VI; 
and the firm’s Methodology and Work Plan (SF 330 Section H) is located in Tab VII.

Proposer must be registered with the State of Florida Division of Corporations to do business in Florida.
Mills + Schnoering Architects is registered with the State of Florida; please see attached licenses and 
registrations. 

Proposer is NOT listed on the Florida State Board of Administration, Scrutinized List of Prohibited 
Companies.
Mills + Schnoering Architects is NOT listed on the Florida State Board of Administration, Scrutinized List of 
Prohibited Companies. 

Bidder is NOT listed on the System for Award Management (SAM), electronic roster of debarred companies 
excluded from Federal procurement and non-procurement programs throughout the U.S. Government. 
Mills + Schnoering Architects is NOT listed on the SAM roster of debarred companies and has NOT been 
declared to be in default on any City or public entity contract, debarred or suspended by any public entity.

Information concerning any prior or pending litigation, either civil or criminal, involving a governmental 
agency or which may affect the performance of the services to be rendered herein, in which the Proposer, or 
any of its employees, is or has been involved within the last three (3) years.
Mills + Schnoering Architects is not involved in any current or pending litigation and has not been involved in 
any litigation in the last three (3) years. 
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2. PUBLIC NOTICE DATE 

1/07/2025 
3. SOLICITATION OR PROJECT NUMBER 

Project No. 25-001 

ARCHITECT-ENGINEER QUALIFICATIONS 

PART I - CONTRACT-SPECIFIC QUALIFICATIONS 

A. CONTRACT INFORMATION

1. TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Crest Theatre Auditorium Renovations, Delray Beach, FL 

B. ARCHITECT-ENGINEER POINT OF CONTACT

4. NAME AND TITLE

Michael R. Schnoering, FAIA, Partner 
5. NAME OF FIRM 

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC 
6. TELEPHONE NUMBER

609-681-2480
7. FAX NUMBER

N/A 
8. E-MAIL ADDRESS

mikes@msarchitectsllc.com 
C. PROPOSED TEAM

(Complete this section for the prime contractor and all key subcontractors.) 
(Check) 

9. FIRM NAME 10. ADDRESS 11. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT

PR
IM

E 
J-

V 
PA

R
TN

ER
 

SU
BC

O
N

- 
TR

AC
TO

R
 

a. ✔ 

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC 

CHECK IF BRANCH OFFICE 

200 Forrestal Road, Suite 3A 
Princeton, NJ 08540 

Architect of Record, Project 
Management, Planning, 
Architectural Design, Historic 
Preservation, Accessibility Design, 
Interior Design, Code Review 

b.  ✔

Sarah Ryan Architect, LLC 

CHECK IF BRANCH OFFICE 

201 Owens Avenue 
St. Augustine, FL 32080 

Architectural Design, 
Construction Administration, 
Local Design Team 
Representative 

c. ✔ 

Powell & Hinkle Engineering 

CHECK IF BRANCH OFFICE 

1409 Kingsley Avenue, #12A 
Orange Park, FL 32073 

Mechanical Engineering, Electrical 
Engineering, Plumbing 
Engineering, Fire Protection 

d. ✔ 

Atlantic Engineering Services 

✔ CHECK IF BRANCH OFFICE 

4141 Southpoint Drive East, Suite C 
Jacksonville, FL 32216 

Structural Engineering 

e. ✔ 

Shuler Shook 

CHECK IF BRANCH OFFICE 

240 W 40th Street, 2nd Floor 
New York, New York 10018 

Theatre Planning 
Lighting Design Audio 
Video Design 

f. ✔ 

Creative Acoustics 

CHECK IF BRANCH OFFICE 

1032 Corte Aguila 
Las Cruces, NM 88011 

Acoustics 

f. ✔ 

Dharam Consulting LLC 

CHECK IF BRANCH OFFICE 

   6132 Vireoridge Drive 
Lithia, FL 33547 

Cost Estimating 

D. ORGANIZATIONAL CHART OF PROPOSED TEAM (Attached) 

AUTHORIZED FOR LOCAL REPRODUCTION STANDARD FORM 330 (REV. 7/2021)6
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The City of Delray Beach, FL

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC
Architect of Record, Project Management, Planning, Architectural Design,
Historic Preservation, Accessibility and Inclusive Design, Interior Design

Pr
im

ar
y 

C
on

su
lta

nt
s

Michael R. Schnoering, FAIA  |  Partner in Charge/Lead Designer

Jude Kostage, P.E.
Principal

Atlantic Engineering Services
Structural Engineering

Amy Mladjen, IIDA, NCIDQ  |  Interior Designer

Robert Forwood, AIA, LEED AP  |  Project Manager/Senior Architect

D. ORGANIZATIONAL CHART OF PROPOSED TEAM

Hirsch Culture Works
Museum Consul�ng
Jeffrey Hirsch, AIA, LEED AP
Principal 

Simpson Gumpertz & Heger
Structural Engineering
Mat Daw, PE
Principal Structural Engineer

Stone Security Engineering
Blast Protec�ve Design
Hollice Stone, M.SC, PE 
Blast Protection Engineer

Loring Consul�ng Engineers
MEP/FP Engineering; Commissioning; 
Communica�ons/Related Systems; 
BIM Management

Vincent Farese, PE, LEED AP
Principal Electrical Engineer

J. Michael Galway, PE, LEED AP
Principal Mechanical Engineer
Antrone Winkey
Senior Plumbing Designer/PM

Jaewook Kwon, PE, LEED AP
Fire Protection Engineer
Todd Steffens, PE, LEED AP
Sr. Commissioning & Energy Engineer 
David Stumer
VP, Communications and Tech.
Sco� Girouard
BIM Technology Manager 

Langan Engineering
Civil and Geotechnical Engineering; 
Surveying; Industrial Hygiene; Hazmat

Ryan Linthicum, PE, LEED AP
Principal Site/Civil Engineer

Ronald Manney, PE
Geotechnical Engineer

Joseph Romano, PLS
Land Surveyor

Peter Frederick, CIEC
Hazmat Specialist

Brian Feury, CIH 
Certified Industrial Hygienist

K2 LLC
Acous�cs; Security

Eric Seifert
Acoustician 

Kevin Hodgson
Security, Low-Voltage

The Ligh�ng Prac�ce
Ligh�ng Design

Jered Widmer
Lighting Designer

LVCK
Signage; Wayfinding

Christopher King
Project Manager

Ricca Design Group
Food Service Consul�ng

Kerri Fitzgerald
Principal

Heritage Landscapes
Landscape Architecture

Patricia O’Donnell, FASLA, AICP
Landscape Architect/Planner 

CLR Design
Zoo Consul�ng

Gregory Dykstra, AIA
Principal Zoo Designer

Satchell Engineering
Aqua�c Life Support

Judy Satchell
Systems Designer

Becker + Frondorf
Cost Es�ma�ng

Mike Zaidel
Cost Estimator

Electronic Data, Inc.
Data Systems

Sco� Yates
Data Systems Engineer

vda, Inc.
Ver�cal Transporta�on

Steve Robertson
Project Manager

Office of Planning, Design and Construc�on

Smithsonian Institution

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC
Architectural Design, Project Management, Interior Design, Historic Preserva�on

Michael R. Schnoering, FAIA
Partner in Charge

Jennifer Arnoldi, AIA 
Project Manager

Katherine Frey
Materials Conservator/Project Manager

Robert Forwood, AIA, LEED AP
Project Designer/Project Manager

Amy Mladjen, IIDA, NCIDQ
Interior Designer

Michael J. Mills, FAIA
Historic Preservation Partner

Meredith Arms Bzdak, PhD
Architectural Historian/Project Manager

Pr
im

ar
y 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s

Sp
ec

ia
lty

 C
on

su
lta

nt
s

Sarah Ryan Architect
Architectural Design, Construction Administration

Sarah Ryan  |  Partner in Charge

Mark McConnel  |  Project Architect

Powell and Hinkle Engineering
Mechanical Engineering
Electrical Engineering
Plumbing Engineering
Fire Protection

Lane Hinkle, P.E.
President

Schuler Shook
Theatre Planning
Lighting Design
Audio Video Design

Jody Kovalick 
Theater Consultant

Creative Acoustics
Acoustics

David Greenberg
President

Dharam Consulting
Cost Estimating

Daniel de Arostegui
Director

Robert Hinkle, P.E.
Principal

Tom Elder, P.E. 
Vice President

Paul Whitaker
Theatre/Lighting 
Consultant

Sten Severson 
A/V Consultant

7



HOME CONTACT US MY ACCOUNT

T H E  O F F I C I A L  S I T E  O F  T H E  F L O R I D A  D E P A R T M E N T  O F  B U S I N E S S  &
P R O F E S S I O N A L  R E G U L A T I O N

ONLINE SERVICES
 Apply for a License

Verify a Licensee

View Food & Lodging Inspections

File a Complaint

Continuing Education Course
Search

View Application Status

Find Exam Information

Unlicensed Activity Search

AB&T Delinquent Invoice & Activity
List Search

LICENSEE DETAILS 1:47:42 PM 1/29/2025

This is a business tracking record only.
Click here for information on how to verify that this business is properly
licensed.
Licensee Information

Name: MILLS AND SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS
LLC (Primary Name)

Main Address: 200 FORRESTAL ROAD SUITE 3A
PRINCETON  New Jersey  08540

County: OUT OF STATE

License Information
License Type: Architect Business Information
Rank: Business Info
License Number:
Status: Current
Licensure Date: 08/11/2021
Expires:

Special
Qualifications

Qualification Effective

Limited Liability
Corporation 08/11/2021

Alternate Names

View Related License Information
View License Complaint

2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee FL 32399 :: Email: Customer Contact Center :: Customer Contact Center: 850.487.1395

The State of Florida is an AA/EEO employer. Copyright ©2023 Department of Business and Professional Regulation - State of Florida. Privacy 
Statement

Under Florida law, email addresses are public records. If you do not want your email address released in response to a public-records request, do 
not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact the office by phone or by traditional mail. If you have any questions, please contact 

850.487.1395. *Pursuant to Section 455.275(1), Florida Statutes, effective October 1, 2012, licensees licensed under Chapter 455, F.S. must 
provide the Department with an email address if they have one. The emails provided may be used for official communication with the licensee.  

However email addresses are public record. If you do not wish to supply a personal address, please provide the Department with an email 
address which can be made available to the public. Please see our Chapter 455 page to determine if you are affected by this change.
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State of Florida
Department of State

I certify from the records of this office that MILLS AND SCHNOERING
ARCHITECTS, LLC is a New Jersey limited liability company authorized to
transact business in the State of Florida, qualified on March 5, 2018.

The document number of this limited liability company is M18000002289.

I further certify that said limited liability company has paid all fees due this
office through December 31, 2024, that its most recent annual report was filed
on April 16, 2024, and that its status is active.

I further certify that said limited liability company has not filed a Certificate of
Withdrawal.

Given under my hand and the
Great Seal of the State of Florida
at Tallahassee, the Capital, this
the Twenty-ninth day of January,
2025

Tracking Number: 5528566092CU

To authenticate this certificate,visit the following site,enter this number, and then
follow the instructions displayed.

https://services.sunbiz.org/Filings/CertificateOfStatus/CertificateAuthentication
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Melanie S. Griffin, SecretaryRon DeSantis, Governor

STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

BOARD OF ARCHITECTURE & INTERIOR DESIGN
THE ARCHITECT HEREIN IS LICENSED UNDER THE

PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 481, FLORIDA STATUTES

SCHNOERING, MICHAEL R

Do not alter this document in any form.

200 FORRESTAL ROAD

LICENSE NUMBER: AR95467
EXPIRATION DATE:  FEBRUARY 28, 2027

This is your license. It is unlawful for anyone other than the licensee to use this document.

SUITE 3A
PRINCETON            NJ 08540

Always verify licenses online at MyFloridaLicense.com

ISSUED: 02/03/2025
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Melanie S. Griffin, SecretaryRon DeSantis, Governor

STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

BOARD OF ARCHITECTURE & INTERIOR DESIGN
THE INTERIOR DESIGNER HEREIN IS REGISTERED UNDER THE

PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 481, FLORIDA STATUTES

MLADJEN, AMY

Do not alter this document in any form.

417 N BELLEVUE AVE

LICENSE NUMBER: ID6846
EXPIRATION DATE:  FEBRUARY 28, 2025

This is your license. It is unlawful for anyone other than the licensee to use this document.

LANGHORNE            PA 19047

Always verify licenses online at MyFloridaLicense.com
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b. POINT OF CONTACT NAME 

Nick Wilkinson 

F. EXAMPLE PROJECTS WHICH BEST ILLUSTRATE PROPOSED TEAM'S
QUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS CONTRACT 

(Present as many projects as requested by the agency, or 10 projects, if not specified. 
Complete one Section F for each project.) 

20. EXAMPLE PROJECT KEY
NUMBER 

1
21. TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

The Tivoli Theatre and Center 
Chattanooga, TN 

22. YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Ongoing 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

Ongoing 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION

a. PROJECT OWNER

The Tivoli Theatre Foundation 
24. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size, and cost) 

c. POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER

423-432-1888

Scope: Master Plan, Addition, Restoration, Renovation  |  Size: 61,000 SF |  Cost: $41,500,000 

Project Description: 
Located in downtown Chattanooga and constructed in 1920, the 1,780-seat Tivoli Theatre was designed by 
Tennessee architect Reuben Harrison Hunt with Chicago architects Rapp and Rapp. Both the Tivoli Theatre and the 
Adjacent Tivoli Center are on the National Register of Historic Places. 

The Tivoli retains much of its original fabric and structure to include brick and terracotta façade with a central Palladian 
window; marquee and blade sign; double-height foyer and lobby with decorative finish; proscenium stage with 
decorative plaster ornament; decorative elliptical domes, and a raked orchestra, balcony, and box seating area. 

The Tivoli Theatre Foundation engaged Mills + Schnoering Architects (M+Sa) to prepare a Master Plan through 
Construction Administration services for the Theatre and Tivoli Center. Work included surveys of the complex to 
document current conditions, developing a program of restoration/renovation for the Theatre, the adaptive use of the 
Tivoli Center's spaces, and creating construction documents for the design. 

Patron amenities include a new bar/concessions; new elevators, seating, and restrooms; and a new donor lounge. A 
second 250-seat flexible film and in the Tivoli Center including state of the art projection and lighting systems, and 
telescoping seating serviced by backstage performer spaces, multi-level lobbies, restrooms, and concession areas. 
Office space for the Tivoli Theatre Foundation will consolidate the Tivoli's administrative staff, new multi-purpose 
rooms will be used for educational and community activities; and accessibility improvements and access will be 
provided throughout. In addition to the restoration/renovation activities, a future restaurant and rooftop lounge will 
further cement the arts center's prominent location in the Chattanooga community. 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT

  a. (1) FIRM NAME 

Mills + Schnoering Architects, 
LLC 

(2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State
) 
Princeton, NJ

(3) ROLE 

Architecture, Interior Design, Historic Preservation, 
Project Management

  b. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  c. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  d. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  e. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  f. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

STANDARD FORM 330 (REV. 7/2021) PAGE 3 12



b. POINT OF CONTACT NAME 

Robert Schober 

F. EXAMPLE PROJECTS WHICH BEST ILLUSTRATE PROPOSED TEAM'S
QUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS CONTRACT 

(Present as many projects as requested by the agency, or 10 projects, if not specified. 
Complete one Section F for each project.) 

20. EXAMPLE PROJECT KEY
NUMBER 

2
21. TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Wheeler Opera House 
Aspen, CO 

22. YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2022 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2022 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION

a. PROJECT OWNER

City of Aspen 
24. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size, and cost) 

c. POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER

970-618-9383

Scope: Master Plan, Exterior Restoration, Addition, Balcony Reconstruction, Renovation 

Size: 27,000 SF  |  Cost: $30,000,000.00 (Theater and Addition Planned); $2,200,000.00 (Balcony as Constructed); 
$2,200,000.00 (Exterior Restoration) 

Description: 
Opened to the public in 1889, the construction of the Wheeler Opera House reflected the cultural growth and development 
of Aspen, Colorado during the late 19th century. The Opera House opened as a multi-use building, encompassing a third- 
floor theater, commercial storefronts, bank, office, and storage space. The building suffered two fires in November 1912 
and sat vacant until its restoration in the 1980s. Today, the Wheeler is an active performance venue. The venue's intent to 
expand spurred the City-owned Wheeler to embark on a community-based planning process to address a number of 
deficiencies to include patron services, administrative space, and performance facilitation. 

Principals and staff of Mills + Schnoering Architects (M+Sa) managed the program study and concept design for a new 
performing arts facility adjacent to the Wheeler in what is now a vacant parcel in addition to renovations of current facilities. 
In this and subsequent efforts, preservation, government, and community stakeholders were engaged regarding the new 
facility. M+Sa also synchronized with a local partner in relation to first floor and basement renovations to add a restaurant 
and additional administrative space in the existing facility. 

A few years later, M+Sa completely rebuilt the balcony of the Wheeler Opera House on a compressed schedule, with 
construction completed in just three months with the city of Aspen choosing an integrated design approach and bringing the 
contractor onto the team during design. The project included a new balcony structure and finishes, control booth, seating, 
HVAC upgrades, and emergency lighting, as well as upgrades to eliminate existing 35mm film technology in favor of a 
digital cinema projection system, and the addition of efficient LED lighting to the auditorium. 

M+Sa recently completed the restoration of the exterior stone. This included replacing most of the projecting elements such 
as belt courses, water tables, and column capitals with new brownstone to match the historic color and texture of the 
‘peach blow' sandstone. 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT

 a. (1) FIRM NAME 

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC

(2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State)

Princeton, NJ

(3) ROLE 

Architecture, Historic Preservation, Project 
Management

 b. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

 c. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

 d. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

 e. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  f. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

STANDARD FORM 330 (REV. 7/2021) PAGE 3 13



b. POINT OF CONTACT NAME 

William Sanders 

F. EXAMPLE PROJECTS WHICH BEST ILLUSTRATE PROPOSED TEAM'S
QUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS CONTRACT 

(Present as many projects as requested by the agency, or 10 projects, if not specified. 
Complete one Section F for each project.) 

20. EXAMPLE PROJECT KEY
NUMBER 

3
21. TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Civic Theatre of Allentown 
Allentown, PA 

22. YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2023 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2018 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION

a. PROJECT OWNER

Civic Theatre of Allentown 
24. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size, and cost) 

c. POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER

610-432-8943 x205

Scope: Master Plan, Phased Renovation and Restoration, Preparation of National Register of Historic Places Nomination 
Size: 21,147 SF  |  Cost: $4,350,000 
Project Description: 
The Civic Theatre was constructed in 1928 as a 1000-seat movie house. Now a 540‐seat venue, the Civic screens first run 
films and hosts live theatrical productions year-round. 

A second space, Theatre514, is located across the street, and contains a small screening room, reception, and gallery 
space. The space also contains a shop that is used for the construction of sets for mainstage productions. Mills + 
Schnoering Architects (M+Sa) recently renovated Theatre514 to enhance seating capacity, equipment layouts for improved 
sightlines, lighting, and finishes. 

M+Sa then prepared a Master Plan for the full renovation and restoration of the complex, including patron amenities and 
accessibility; backstage improvements; and lighting. The design team worked to identify creative solutions for capturing 
existing space or creating new spaces to accommodate production needs with the overarching goals of enhancing 
administrative and program functions; providing greater patron access, comfort, and safety; and expanding educational 
opportunities. 

Renovations included total building systems upgrades; box office, lobby, and auditorium renovations; new auditorium 
seating; restoration of historic finishes; new and upgraded theatrical systems; accessibility improvements; new concession 
area; and new ticket booth and box office suite. The work was funded via a Redevelopment Capital Program (RACP) grant 
through the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and private donations. 

The next phase of design work will restore the building's façade and renovate portions of the second floor including 
rehearsal studio, costume shop, and classroom. A National Register of Historic Places Nomination was successfully 
completed for the theater in 2023. 

Awards: Preservation Pennsylvania (2019 Construction Project Award in Restoration); New Jersey AIA Design Award 
(2019 Merit Award for Built-Preservation) 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT

  a. (1) FIRM NAME 

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC

(2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State)

Princeton, NJ

(3) ROLE 

Architecture, Interior Design, Historic Preservation, Project 
Management

  b. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  c. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  d. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  e. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  f. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 
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b. POINT OF CONTACT NAME 

Andrew Smith 

F. EXAMPLE PROJECTS WHICH BEST ILLUSTRATE PROPOSED TEAM'S
QUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS CONTRACT 

(Present as many projects as requested by the agency, or 10 projects, if not specified. 
Complete one Section F for each project.) 

20. EXAMPLE PROJECT KEY
NUMBER 

4
21. TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Newtown Theatre 
Newtown, PA 

22. YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2021 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2021 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION

a. PROJECT OWNER

Newtown Hall Theatre, Inc. 
24. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size, and cost) 

c. POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER

267-884-6329

Scope: Master Plan, Feasibility Study, Renovation  |  Size: 7,350 SF |  Cost: $500,000 

Project Description: 
The 343-seat Newtown Theatre was constructed in 1883 as Newtown Hall, a non-denominational place of worship and 
community space. The building sits on a residential block within the Newtown Historic District. 

Since the 1930s, the space has functioned as a single-screen movie house and live performance venue in addition to 
hosting community events. Over the years, the building's masonry exterior has been repointed and repaired to maintain its 
1880s appearance, while the interior has remained largely unchanged since the 1930s when the building was renovated for 
film and Art Deco fixtures and finishes were introduced. 

In 2012 principals and staff of Mills + Schnoering Architects (M+Sa) led a feasibility study and prepared a Master Plan and 
concept design for additions and renovations to improve the building's performance capabilities; provide accessibility for 
patrons, staff, and performers; and restore select historic elements to their 1930s appearance. The concept design included 
an expanded lobby, including updated ticketing and concessions areas; barrier-free entries into the building; new audience 
seating at both the orchestra and balcony levels; restoration of historic finishes; and new restrooms for patrons and theater 
staff. 

Fundraising challenges delayed the development of the project until 2017, when M+Sa was again engaged to revise the 
previous concept design for a more focused approach to Newtown Theatre's programming. M+Sa developed a schematic 
design package for an initial phase of limited renovations within the Auditorium to provide an improved patron experience 
and greater accessibility. The project included the reconfiguration of the main Auditorium floor, creation of a new accessible 
toilet room on the main level, new seating on the main level, and auditorium paint/plaster repair and restoration. 
Construction for the auditorium was completed in Fall 2021. Future work will include the improvement of concessions and 
other building systems. 

   Awards: Preservation Alliance for Greater Philadelphia (2022 Grand Jury Award) 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT

 a. (1) FIRM NAME 

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC

(2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State)

Princeton, NJ

(3) ROLE 

Architecture, Interior Design, Historic 
Preservation Project Management

  b. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  c. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  d. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  e. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  f. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

STANDARD FORM 330 (REV. 7/2021) PAGE 3 15



b. POINT OF CONTACT NAME 

David Adler 

F. EXAMPLE PROJECTS WHICH BEST ILLUSTRATE PROPOSED TEAM'S
QUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS CONTRACT 

(Present as many projects as requested by the agency, or 10 projects, if not specified. 
Complete one Section F for each project.) 

20. EXAMPLE PROJECT KEY
NUMBER 

5
21. TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Eichelberger Performing Arts Center 
Hanover, PA 

22. YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2023 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2023 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION

a. PROJECT OWNER

Eichelberger Performing Arts Center 
24. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size, and cost) 

c. POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER

717-632-9356 x302

   Scope: Renovation  |  Size: 6,480 SF  |  Cost:  $659,257 

Project Description: 
The Eichelberger Performing Arts Center is housed within a building constructed in 1896 and listed on the National 
Register of Historic Places. The building was used as a high school throughout most of the twentieth century and then 
adapted in 1991 to serve a commercial use, with professional offices and the Eichelberger Performing Arts Center as the 
principal occupants. 

The 781-seat performing arts center uses nearly a third of the entire building and opened for its first performance in 
October 1998. In addition to the auditorium, the center includes restrooms, dressing rooms, storage, administrative offices, 
and a box office. 

M+Sa developed a construction documents package for limited renovations within the performing arts center's auditorium 
to provide an improved patron experience that focused on a more efficient seating layout with improved balcony sightlines. 
The work area included the orchestra level and balcony levels of the auditorium. 

The project included removal of existing seating and floor finishes, construction of new flat areas for wheelchairs and fixed 
seating, installation of new seating in a new configuration (665 seats and 7 wheelchair positions), replacement of the sound 
booth partition and counter, new floor overframing for existing balcony level rows, replacement floor finishes, replacement 
balcony railing, painting, and electrical scope for seat end standards and in-wall lighting. 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT

  a. (1) FIRM NAME 

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC

(2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State)

Princeton, NJ

(3) ROLE 

Architecture, Interior Design, Historic Preservation, 
Project Management

  b. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  c. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  d. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  e. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  f. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 
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b. POINT OF CONTACT NAME 

Emily Ruegger 

F. EXAMPLE PROJECTS WHICH BEST ILLUSTRATE PROPOSED TEAM'S
QUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS CONTRACT 

(Present as many projects as requested by the agency, or 10 projects, if not specified. 
Complete one Section F for each project.) 

20. EXAMPLE PROJECT KEY
NUMBER 

6
21. TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Ripley Lecture Auditorium, Smithsonian Institution 
Washington, DC 

22. YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Ongoing 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

Ongoing 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION

a. PROJECT OWNER

Smithsonian Institution 
24. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size, and cost) 

c. POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER

202-330-4407

Scope: Renovation  |  Size: 5,295 SF  |  Cost: $4,500,000 

Project Description: 
The Smithsonian Quadrangle at 1100 Jefferson Dr, SW, is a complex of buildings that houses Smithsonian 
Associates' (SA) museum-based educational classrooms, programming spaces and offices. The Ripley Lecture Hall, 
located within the Smithsonian Quadrangle, is a self-contained suite of underground spaces. 

The two-story lecture hall is accessed via a domed kiosk at street level and then by elevator or stairs to the 3rd sublevel 
basement. The Ripley Lecture Hall is an important venue that hosts numerous public programs and plays a significant role 
in fulfilling the Smithsonian Associates' mission. 

The Ripley Lecture Hall is heavily used, and primarily hosts lectures and panel discussions on a wide variety of subjects. 
Small music and other live stage productions supplement SA's lecture programming. Accessibility, technical systems, and 
the size of the stage limit SA's ability to provide appropriate and necessary separations between speaker/performer and 
audience, and do not accommodate pre-event speaker/performer space. 

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC was engaged by the Smithsonian Institution to assist in designing renovations for the 
Ripley Lecture Hall and its adjacent support spaces. The project's primary objectives are to enhance the user experience 
for presenters, in-person attendees and virtual participants. The scope includes upgrading the technical capabilities of the 
audiovisual systems, lighting and acoustics in the lecture hall, increasing the audience capacity from 173 to 213 seats 
improving architectural finishes, integrating accessibility features for patrons, performers, and lecturers, and integrating 
new support functions to enhance the presenter's experience. 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT

  a. (1) FIRM NAME 

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC 

(2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State)

Princeton, NJ

(3) ROLE 

Architecture, Interior Design, Project Management

  b. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  c. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  d. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  e. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  f. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

STANDARD FORM 330 (REV. 7/2021) PAGE 3 
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b. POINT OF CONTACT NAME 

Elliot Fox 

F. EXAMPLE PROJECTS WHICH BEST ILLUSTRATE PROPOSED TEAM'S
QUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS CONTRACT 

(Present as many projects as requested by the agency, or 10 projects, if not specified. 
Complete one Section F for each project.) 

20. EXAMPLE PROJECT KEY
NUMBER 

7
21. TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Center for Creativity @ The Rialto 
Westfield, NJ 

22. YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Ongoing 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

Ongoing 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION

a. PROJECT OWNER

Center for Creativity @ The Rialto 
24. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size, and cost) 

c. POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER

201-779-6635

Scope: Schematic Design through Construction; Renovations  |  Size: 30,500 SF  |  Cost: $18,500,000 

Project Description: 
The 1922 Rialto Theater occupies a prominent location in downtown Westfield, NJ. The building is located within the 
National Register-eligible Westfield Commercial Historic District as well as a locally defined historic district. The Rialto 
closed in 2019 and was last used as a two-story multiplex movie theater with six auditoriums, offices, support spaces, and 
attached retail stores. 

Local recognition of the fact that a repurposed Rialto has the potential to play an important local and regional role in 
stimulating interest in and exposure to the arts while serving as a critical economic engine for the town led to a vision for a 
new community-focused destination known as The Center for Creativity. Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC (M+Sa) was 
hired to work with The Center for Creativity to develop a plan that would bring life back to the building, reactivate the street 
and sidewalk, and create a welcoming beacon for all. 

M+Sa's plans call for a multi-purpose event space capable of hosting live performance with a seating capacity of 
approximately 250 people or more, which could be utilized for film screenings, live music, dance, theater, lectures, parties, 
and gallery exhibitions. The event space features a two-story operable partition that when open joins the formal seating 
area with the lobby, providing flexibility for various event types. 

A new accessible lobby affords access to the facility through a repurposed retail space. gallery space for the display of 
artwork is woven throughout the building, and a dual-function coffee bar is designed to serve as a concession for the 
performance area and a café for other patrons. Original second floor office spaces will be repurposed to accommodate art 
and music classrooms, as well as small lectures and film screenings. A new dance studio is designed as part of a new 
second floor structure within the volume of the original auditorium area. New restrooms and elevator access serve all floors. 
New fenestration is proposed to enliven lobby spaces and provide a visual connection between pedestrian and patron 
zones. 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT

  a. (1) FIRM NAME 

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC 

(2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State)

Princeton, NJ

(3) ROLE 

Architecture, Historic Preservation, Interior 
Design, Project Management

  b. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  c. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  d. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  e. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

  f. (1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 
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F. EXAMPLE PROJECTS WHICH BEST ILLUSTRATE PROPOSED TEAM'S
QUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS CONTRACT 

(Present as many projects as requested by the agency, or 10 projects, if not specified. 
Complete one Section F for each project.) 

20. EXAMPLE PROJECT KEY 
NUMBER 8 

21. TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

Lightner Museum, St Augustine, FL
22. YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2020-ongoing 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2024-ongoing 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION

a. PROJECT OWNER 

Lightner Museum
b. POINT OF CONTACT NAME 

David Bagnall, Director
c. POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER

904-824-2874 x 106
24. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size, and cost)

Key Features: 
• As-built drawings documenting floor

plans and elevations
• Interior work focused on modernizing

the interior museum exhibit spaces and
upgrading accessibility, sprinkler and
MEP design

• Exterior work focused on window
restoration / replacement and moisture
mitigation (Coquina is very porous)

Description: The Lightner Museum built by Henry Flagler in 1887 is a 
4-story coquina concrete with solid walls and details in a Mediterranean
style. This project scope is phased and includes documenting and
measuring the building, renovations of the Alcazar Baths and sur- 
rounding galleries and complete window restoration / replacement of
the exterior. The museum suffers from inadequate accessibility / way
finding and the renovations address these issues by upgrading access
and safety in the galleries - for example a glass bridge through a
gallery space that elevates patrons above a series of stairs.

Project Square footage: 25,000 sf 
Construction Cost:$5,000,000 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT

a. 
(1) FIRM NAME 

Sarah Ryan Architect
(2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State)

 St Augustine, FL 
(3) ROLE 

 Architecture, Project Management 

b. 
(1) FIRM NAME 

Atlantic Engineering Services
(2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State)

 Jacksonville, FL 
(3) ROLE 

 Structural Engineering 

  c. 
(1) FIRM NAME 

 Powell & Hinkle Engineering 
2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State)

Jacksonville, FL 
(3) ROLE 
 MEP Engineering 
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F. EXAMPLE PROJECTS WHICH BEST ILLUSTRATE PROPOSED TEAM'S
QUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS CONTRACT 

(Present as many projects as requested by the agency, or 10 projects, if not specified. 
Complete one Section F for each project.) 

20. EXAMPLE PROJECT KEY 
NUMBER 9 

21. TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

First Baptist Church, St Augustine, FL
22. YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2020-2024 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2022-2024 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION

a. PROJECT OWNER First Baptist Church &
City of St Augustine CRA 

b. POINT OF CONTACT NAME 
Jaime Perkins (City of St Augustine)

c. POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER
904-209-4254

24. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size, and cost)

Key Features: 
• Renovation of Historic Church in St

Augustine - Church was location of
protests in the Civil Rights movement of
1964

• Work focused on upgrading the exterior
envelope, interior MEP, and accessibility

• Stakeholders included church members,
City of St Augustine CRA and local
historic preservation review board

• Flood proofing measures

Description: First Baptist Church is located in the historic neighbor- 
hood of Lincolnville in St Augustine, FL. The projects was designed in 
two phases. Phase 1 renovations included a new roof, new 
mechanical and electrical service, and window restoration. Phase 2 
renovations included a new elevator addition. St Augustine is prone to 
flood events and flood proofing the lower floor was an important part 
of the scope. 

Project Square footage: 5500 SF 
Construction Cost $2,000,000 (Phase 1 and 2) 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT

a. 
(1) FIRM NAME 

Sarah Ryan Architect
(2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State)

 St Augustine, FL 
(3) ROLE 

 Architecture, Project Management 

b. 
(1) FIRM NAME 

Atlantic Engineering Services
(2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State)

 Jacksonville, FL 
(3) ROLE 

 Structural Engineering 

 c. 
(1) FIRM NAME 

 Powell & Hinkle Engineering 

2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State)

Jacksonville, FL 

(3) ROLE 

 MEP Engineering 
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b. POINT OF CONTACT NAME 

Erik Simonsen, Executive Director 

F. EXAMPLE PROJECTS WHICH BEST ILLUSTRATE PROPOSED TEAM'S
QUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS CONTRACT 

(Present as many projects as requested by the agency, or 10 projects, if not specified. 
Complete one Section F for each project.) 

20. EXAMPLE PROJECT KEY
NUMBER 

10
21. TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Mabel Tainter Center for the Arts, Menomonie, WI 
22. YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2005 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2007 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION

a. PROJECT OWNER

Mabel Tainter Literary & Library Society 
24. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size, and cost) 

c. POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER

(715) 239-9726

Schuler Shook worked closely with the design team to develop more functional stage and technical systems within the 
existing footprint. A new loading dock improves access to the stage. A steel rigging structure and loading gallery were 
inserted within the existing stage to allow installation of a counterweight rigging system. The new rigging supports modern 
stage lighting and masking curtains as well as the historic painted backdrops that have long been used at the Mabel 
Tainter. Portable platforms at the front of the stage allow expanded audience seating or easy access to the orchestra pit. 
Other improvements include an enlarged and upgraded dimming system, an expanded lighting and audio control area, and 
user-friendly architectural lighting controls for the auditorium. 

Project budget was $4.1 million. 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT

a. 
(1) FIRM NAME 
Schuler Shook 

(2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) 
Minneapolis, MN 

(3) ROLE 
Theatre Planning / Architectural Lighting Design 

b. 
(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

c. 
(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

d. 
(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

e. 
(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 

f. 
(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State) (3) ROLE 
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G. KEY PERSONNEL PARTICIPATION IN EXAMPLE PROJECTS

26. NAMES OF KEY
PERSONNEL

(From Section E, Block 12) 

27. ROLE IN THIS
CONTRACT

(From Section E, Block 13) 

28. EXAMPLE PROJECTS LISTED IN SECTION F
(Fill in "Example Projects Key" section below before completing table. 

Place "X" under project key number for participation in same or similar role.) 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

Michael R. Schnoering, FAIA 
Mills + Schnoering Architects 

Partner in Charge (M+Sa) 

Robert Forwood, AIA, LEED AP 
Mills + Schnoering Architects 

Project Manager / Senior 
Architect 

Amy Mladjen, IIDA, NCIDQ 
Mills + Schnoering Architects 

Interior Designer 

Sarah Ryan 
Sarah Ryan Architect 

Partner in Charge (SRA) 

Mark McConnel 
Sarah Ryan Architect 

Project Architect 

Lane R. Hinkle, P.E. 
Powell & Hinkle Engineering 

Mechanical Engineer of 
Record 

Robert L. Hinkle, P.E. 
Powell & Hinkle Engineering 

Plumbing, Fire Protection 

Tom Elder, P.E. 
Powell & Hinkle Engineering 

Electrical Engineer of Record 

Jude T. Kostage, P.E. 
Atlantic Engineering Services 

Structural Engineer 

Jody Kovalick 
Schuler Shook 

Theatre Consultant 

Paul Whitaker 
Schuler Shook 

Theatre Consultant / 
Architectural Lighting 

Sten Severson 
Schuler Shook 

Audio Video Consultant 

David Greenberg 
Creative Acoustics 

Acoustical Consultant 

Daniel de Arostegui 
Dharam Consulting 

Cost Estimator 

Anthony Lizzi 
Dharam Consulting 

Cost Estimator 

29. EXAMPLE PROJECTS KEY

N 

STANDARD FORM 330 (REV. 7/2021) PAGE 4 

UMBER TITLE OF EXAMPLE PROJECT (From Section F) NUMBER TITLE OF EXAMPLE PROJECT (From Section F) 

1 The Tivoli Theatre and Center 6 Ripley Lecture Auditorium, Smithsonian Institution 

2 Wheeler Opera House 7 Center for Creativity @ The Rialto 

3 Civic Theatre of Allentown 8 Lightner Museum 

4 Newtown Theatre 9 First Baptist Church 

5 Eichelberger Performing Arts Center 10 Mabel Tainter Center for the Arts 
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IV. Proposer’s Information

TAB IV – PROPOSER’S INFORMATION

Legal contracting name including any dba and state of organization or incorporation.
The firm’s legal name is Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC, a New Jersey Limited Liability Company (LLC) 
authorized to transact business in the State of Florida. 

Ownership structure of Proposer’s company
Mills + Schnoering Architects is a Limited Liability Company. 

Provide, in this section, a completed and executed copy of Proposer’s W-9 that includes the company federal 
identification number.
The company’s W-9 is enclosed.

Contact information for Proposer’s Corporate headquarters and any other office locations.
Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC, 200 Forrestal Road, Suite 3A, Princeton, NJ  08540 | 609.681.2480
Mills + Schnoering Architects, PC, 230 S. Broad Street, Suite 1050, Philadelphia, PA 19102 | 609.681.2480

Contact information for Proposer’s primary and secondary representative during this solicitation process.
Michael R. Schnoering, FAIA, Partner | 609.681.2480 ext. 102 | mikes@msarchitectsllc.com |
Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC, 200 Forrestal Road, Suite 3A, Princeton, NJ  08540 
Sarah Ryan, Principal | 904-547-9430 | sr@sarahryanarchitect.com |
Sarah Ryan, Architect LLC, 201 Owens Avenue, St. Augustine, FL  32080

Provide details of any ownership changes to Proposer’s organization in the past three years or Changes 
anticipated within six months of the Due Date and Time.
Mills + Schnoering Architects has not had any ownership changes in the past three years and does not 
anticipate any changes within the next six months. 

Provide the names of the persons who are officers or principals of the company.
Mills + Schnoering Architects is led by three partners: Michael R. Schnoering, FAIA; Meredith Arms Bzdak, PhD; 
and Amy Mladjen, IIDA, NCIDQ.

Any additional organizational information that Proposer wishes to supply to augment its Proposal.
See Tab VII. 

Provide prior or pending litigation, either civil or criminal, involving a governmental agency or which may 
affect the performance of the services to be rendered herein, in which the Proposer, and of its employees or 
subcontractors, is or has been involved within the last three (3) years.
Mills + Schnoering Architects is not involved in any current or pending litigation and has not been involved in 
any litigation in the last three (3) years. 

Its most recent certified business financial statements as of a date not earlier than the end of the Proposer’s 
preceding official tax accounting period, together with a statement in writing, signed by a duly authorized 
representative, stating that the present financial condition is materially the same as that shown on the 
balance sheet and income statement submitted.
Please see enclosed.
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12 February 2025

Purchasing and Contract Administration Division
The City of Delray Beach 
100 NW 1st Avenue 
Delray Beach, FL 33444

Re:	 RFQ NO.: 2025-019 
Professional Services – Architectural/Engineering Design & Construction Administration 

Crest Theatre Auditorium Renovations/ Project No. 25-001X October 2024

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC’s financial condition is materially the same as that shown on the balance 
sheet and income statement that follows as part of our Independent Accountant’s Compilation Report. 

As an additional note, the firm’s revenue increased by approximately 25% in 2024.

Michael R. Schnoering, FAIA
Partner

IV. Business Financial Statements
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MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
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MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 
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Balance Sheets 2 

Statements of Operations 3 

Statements of Changes in Members’ Equity 4 

Statements of Cash Flows 5 

Notes to Financial Statements 6 - 12 

Supplemental Information 

Schedules of Professional Expenses and Selling, 

General and Administrative Expenses 13 
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1540 Kuser Road, Suite A-4, Mercerville, New Jersey 08619  Tel: 609 581 0300 
info@platformcpa.com  www.platformcpa.com 

To the Members of 
Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC 
Princeton, New Jersey  

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ COMPILATION REPORT 

Management is responsible for the accompanying financial statements of Mills + Schnoering 
Architects, LLC, (a limited liability company), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 
31, 2023, and the related statements of operations, changes in members’ equity and cash flows for 
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have performed a compilation 
engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services 
promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not audit 
or review the financial statements nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the 
accuracy or completeness of the information provided by management. We do not express an 
opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on these financial statements. 

The supplementary information contained in the Schedules of Professional Expenses and Selling, 
General and Administrative Expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management. The supplementary information was subject to our compilation engagement. We 
have not audited or reviewed the supplementary information and do not express an opinion, a 
conclusion, nor provide any assurance on such information. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in the notes to the financial statements, Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC adopted 
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02 Leases (Topic 842) and its amendments 
(including amendments contained in ASU No. 2018-11), effective January 1, 2022. Our opinion 
is not modified with respect to these matters. 

Other Matter 

The financial statements of Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC as of December 31, 2022 were 
subjected to a compilation engagement by Hamilton Financial Group, LLC, whose partners and 
professional staff joined Platform CPAs, LLP and whose report dated March 29, 2023 stated that 
they had not audited or reviewed the 2022 financial statements and did not express an opinion, a 
conclusion, nor provide any assurance on those financial statements. 

PLATFORM CPAs, LLP 
Mercerville, New Jersey 
March 13, 2024 
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MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2023 and 2022  

See accompanying notes and independent accountants’ compilation report. 

ASSETS 

2023 2022 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 531,886 $ 795,544 
Accounts receivable, net 982,023 827,086 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 69,974 70,757 

Total current assets 1,583,883 1,693,387 

Property and equipment, net of 
accumulated depreciation 47,614 52,564 

Other assets: 
 Right of use asset – operating lease 124,908 223,672 

Total assets $ 1,756,405 $ 1,969,623 

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable  $ 454,563 $ 307,526 
Accrued consulting fees  533,895 523,910 
Current maturities of long-term debt 55,459 54,750 
Current portion of operating lease obligation 99,796 98,764 

Total current liabilities 1,143,713 984,950 

Long-term liabilities 
Operating lease obligation, net of current portion 25,112 124,908 
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 183,535 253,404 

Total liabilities 1,352,360 1,363,262 

Members’ equity 404,045 606,361 

Total liabilities and members’ equity $ 1,756,405 $ 1,969,623 
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MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Statements of Operations 

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

See accompanying notes and independent accountants’ compilation report. 

2023 2022 

Gross fees $ 4,407,839 $ 4,492,104 

Professional expenses 3,618,329 3,443,128 
Selling, general and administrative expenses 824,148 824,857 

Total operating expense 4,442,477 4,267,985 

Income (loss) before other income (expense) (34,638) 224,119 

Other income (expense) 
Interest income 4,417 2,782 
Interest expense (2,888) (3,356) 
State pass-through taxes (2,207) (51,678) 

Total other income (expense) (678) (52,252)

Net income (loss) $ (35,316) $ 171,867 
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MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Statements of Changes in Members’ Equity 
Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

See accompanying notes and independent accountants’ compilation report. 

M. Schnoering M. Bzdak A. Mladjen Total 

Members’ equity at January 1, 2022 $ 567,095 $ 167,399 $ - $ 734,494 

Net income 139,212 32,655 - 171,867 

Member draws (243,000) (57,000) - (300,000) 

Members’ equity at December 31, 2022  463,307 143,054 - 606,361 

Net (loss) (24,721) (7,063) (3,532) (35,316) 

Member draws (116,900) (33,400) (16,700) (167,000) 

Members’ equity at December 31, 2023 $ 321,686 $ 102,591 $ (20,232) $ 404,045 
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MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

See accompanying notes and independent accountants’ compilation report. 

2023 2022 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Net income (loss) $ (35,316) $ 171,867 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net 

cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Change in right to use asset 98,764 97,742 
Change in lease liability (98,764) (97,742) 
Depreciation  12,750 13,930 
Decrease (increase) in: 

 Accounts receivable (154,937) (394,091) 
    Prepaid expenses and other current assets 783 (42,581) 
Increase (decrease) in: 

Accounts payable  147,037 67,558 
Accrued consulting fees 9,985 222,493 

Total adjustments 15,618 (132,691) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (19,698) 39,176 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of property and equipment (7,800) (42,790) 

Net cash (used in) investing activities (7,800) (42,790) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Principal payments of long-term debt (69,160) (54,195) 
Member draws (167,000) (300,000) 

Net cash (used in) financing activities (236,160) (354,195) 

Net (decrease) in cash (263,658) (357,809) 

Cash – beginning of year 795,544 1,153,353 

Cash – end of year $ 531,886 $ 795,544 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 
Cash paid during the year for: 
 Interest expense $ 2,888 $ 3,356 
 Income taxes $ 2,207 $ 51,678 

Non cash investing activities: 
Acquisition of right to use assets and liabilities 
Right to use asset $ - $ 321,414 
Right to use liabilities - 321,414 
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MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

1. Organization and Business Activities

Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC (a New Jersey Limited Liability Company), was formed on 
March 4, 2011. The Company provides professional architectural services to both the public and 
private sectors.   

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting 

The Company utilizes the accrual basis of accounting.  Accordingly, revenues are recognized when 
they are earned and expenses are recognized when they are incurred. 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is generally realized or realizable and earned when persuasive evidence of an 
arrangement exists, services have been rendered, the seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or 
determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. The Company records revenue when 
services are performed and are either billed or billable to a specific job contract. 

Accounts receivable are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade terms 
requiring payment within 30 days from the invoice date.  Finance charges on unpaid balances are 
computed at 1% per month. Due to the uncertainty regarding collection, finance charges are 
recognized as income only when received. Credit is granted to substantially all customers without 
collateral. 

The Company’s trade accounts receivable are stated net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. 
The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on an analysis of specific customers, taking into 
consideration the age of past due accounts and an assessment of the customer’s ability to pay. 
There were no allowances for doubtful accounts at December 31, 2023 and 2022.  

The Company’s revenue disaggregated according to the timing of when revenue is recognized is 
as follows: 

2023 2022 

Revenue recognized at a point in time (ASC 606) $ - $ - 
Revenue recognized over time (ASC 606) 4,407,839 4,492,104 
Other revenue not subject to ASC 606 - - 

Total revenue $ 4,407,839 $ 4,492,104 
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MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets which range from 5 to 15 years. Repair and 
maintenance costs are expensed, while additions and betterments are capitalized. The cost and 
related accumulated depreciation of assets sold or retired are eliminated from the accounts and any 
gains or losses are reflected in earnings. 

Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt 
instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Income Taxes 

The Company is treated as a partnership for federal and state income tax purposes. Accordingly, 
all earnings or losses are taxed to the members in proportion to each member’s pro rata share of 
ownership. The Company has elected to be taxed as a pass-through entity in New Jersey based on 
the Company’s net taxable income in that jurisdiction.  

Generally accepted accounting principles prescribe a recognition threshold and measurement 
attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or 
expected to be taken in a tax return. It requires that computations of current and deferred income 
taxes only consider tax positions that are more likely than not to be sustained if the tax authorities 
examine the position. The Company evaluates statutes of limitations, changes in tax law, and new 
authoritative rulings and accrues for liabilities if applicable. The Company’s evaluation found no 
uncertain tax positions. 

Federal and state tax returns are subject to examination by the taxing authorities generally for a 
period of three years after they are filed. Any penalties and interest assessed by taxing authorities 
are included in operating expenses. No interest and penalties have been recorded for the years 
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

Guaranteed Payments to Partners 

Guaranteed payments to partners that are intended as compensation for services rendered are 
accounted for as partnership expenses and included in the allocation of partnership net income. 
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MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Guaranteed Payments to Partners (continued) 

Guaranteed payments that are intended as payments of interest on capital accounts are not 
accounted for as expenses of the partnership and not included in the allocation of partnership net 
income. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist 
principally of cash and accounts receivable. The Company maintains its cash balances at several 
financial institutions.  At times, balances may exceed Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
limits. Concentration of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are limited due to the large 
number of customers comprising the Company’s customer base. 

Advertising Costs 

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended 
December 31, 2023 and 2022 were $3,545 and $1,614, respectively. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

The Company evaluates long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, and assets subject to 
amortization for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances require a long-lived 
asset be tested for possible impairment.  The Company first compares undiscounted cash flows 
expected to be generated by an asset to the carrying value of the asset.  If the carrying value of the 
long-lived asset is not recoverable on an undiscounted cash flow basis, an impairment is 
recognized to the extent that the carrying value exceeds its fair value.  Fair value is determined 
through various valuation techniques including discounted cash flow models, quoted market 
values and third-party independent appraisals, as considered necessary. No impairment charges 
have been recorded in the accompanying financial statements related to long-lived assets. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The Company has a number of financial instruments, none of which are held for trading purposes. 
The Company estimates that the fair value of all financial instruments at December 31, 2023 and 
2022 does not differ materially from the aggregate carrying values of its financial instruments 
recorded in the accompanying statement of financial position. The estimated fair value amounts 
have been determined by the Company using available market information and appropriate 
valuation methodologies. Considerable judgment is necessarily required in interpreting market 
data to develop the estimates of fair value and, accordingly, the estimates are not necessarily 
indicative of the amounts that the Company could realize in a current market exchange. 
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MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Adoption of FASB ASC 842 

Effective January 1, 2022, the Company adopted FASB ASC 842, Leases. The Company 
determines if an arrangement contains a lease at inception based on whether the Company has the 
right to control the assets during the contract period and other facts and circumstances. The 
Company elected the package of practical expedients permitted under the transition guidance 
within the new standard, which among other things, allowed it to carry forward the historical lease 
classification. This new lease standard had minimal impact on the financial statements. 

The adoption of FASB ASC 842 resulted in the recognition of right-to-use-assets, net of prepaid 
lease payments and lease incentives, of $321,414 and operating lease liabilities of $321,414 as of 
January 1, 2022. Results for periods beginning prior to January 1, 2022 continue to be reported in 
accordance with our historical accounting treatment. The adoption of FASB ASC 842 did not have 
material impact on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows or debt covenants. 

Reclassifications 

Certain prior balances have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation. 

Subsequent Events 

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 13, 2024, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 

3. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment at December 31, 2023 and 2022 consisted of the following: 

2023  2022 

Leasehold improvements $ 69,423 $ 69,423 
Office equipment 270,101 262,301 
Furniture and fixtures 65,430 65,430 

404,954 397,154 
Less: accumulated depreciation (357,340) (344,590) 

$ 47,614 $ 52,564 

Depreciation expense amounted to $12,750 and $13,930 for the years ended December 31, 2023 
and 2022, respectively. 
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MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

4. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt at December 31, 2023 and 2022 consisted of the following: 

2023 2022 

Loan payable of $389,240 to a former 
member, payable in quarterly installments 
of $14,410 including interest at 1.02% per 
annum through April 2028, collateralized by 
the assets of the Company.  

$ 238,994 $ 308,154 

238,994 308,154 
Less:  current maturities (55,459) (54,750) 

Long-term debt, net of current maturities $ 183,535  $ 253,404 

The following is a summary of principal maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2023: 

2024 $ 55,459 
2025 56,027 
2026 56,602 
2027 57,182 
2028 13,724 

$ 238,994 

5. Line of Credit

The Company has a $265,000 line of credit. The line bears interest at the prime rate plus one 
percent, is collateralized by substantially all assets of the Company, and is personally guaranteed 
by all of the members. Borrowings on the line are based upon eligible accounts receivable and are 
subject to certain covenants and conditions. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had 
no amounts due against this line and the bank’s prime rate was 8.50% and 7.50%, respectively. 

6. Pension Plan

The Company has a 401(k) and profit-sharing plan for the benefit of its employees. Employer 
matching contributions are made on a discretionary basis in the amount of 50% on the first 3% of 
an employee’s gross wages. No employer matching is made on any employee contribution which 
is in excess of 3% of gross wages. Total employer contributions to the plan amounted to $18,327 
and $16,455 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The Company, at its 
discretion, may contribute to the profit-sharing component of the plan. There were no profit-
sharing contributions made for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. 
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MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

7. Commitments and Contingencies

In lieu of a security deposit under its office space lease, the Company has posted a letter of credit 
in the amount of $13,000, which expires on December 1, 2024 and is renewable annually. The 
letter of credit reduces the amount available on the Company’s line of credit. 

The Company has an operating lease providing for monthly payments of $8,377 for office space 
which expires on April 1, 2025. Rent expense amounted to $100,528 for each of the years ended 
December 31, 2023 and 2022. 

2023 2022 

Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 124,908 $ 223,672 

Current portion long-term lease liabilities 99,796 98,764 

Operating lease liabilities, net current portion 25,112 124,908 

Total operating lease liabilities $ 124,908 $ 223,672 

The components of operating lease expenses for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were 
as follows: 

2023 2022 

Operating lease cost $ 100,528 $ 100,528 

Variable lease cost $ - $ - 

The following summarizes the cash flow information related to operating leases for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 and 2022.  

2023 2022 

Cash paid for amounts included in the 
 measurement of lease liabilities: 

Operating cash flows for operating leases $ 100,528 $ 100,528 

Lease assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities: 

Operating leases $ -  $ 321,414 

Weighted average lease term and discount rate of December 31, 2023 and 2022 were as follows: 

2023  2022 

Weighted average remaining lease term 1.25 years 2.25 years 

Weighted average discount rate 1.04 % 1.04% 
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MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

7. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2023 under 
non-cancelable operating leases discounted to present value using the Company’s risk-free rate:  

2024 $ 100,528 
2025 25,144 

Total lease payments 125,672 
Less: Interest (764) 

Present value of lease liability  124,908 
Less current portion of operating lease obligations (99,796) 

Operating lease obligation, net of current portion $ 25,112 

8. Concentrations

The Company earned approximately 64% and 69% of its revenues from two and three customers 
in 2023 and 2022, respectively.  At December 31, 2023 and 2022, accounts receivable included 
$685,770 and $568,843, respectively, from these customers. 

9. Compensated Absences

Employees of the Company are entitled to paid vacation, paid sick days, and personal days off, 
depending on job classification, length of service, and other factors. It is impracticable to estimate 
the amount of compensation for future absences and, accordingly, no liability has been recorded 
in the accompanying financial statements. The Company’s policy is to recognize the costs of 
compensated absences when actually paid to employees. 

10. Provision for State Taxes

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, provision for state taxes included New Jersey 
pass-through entity tax of $2,207 and $51,678, respectively. 
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MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Schedules of Professional Expenses and Selling, General and Administrative Expenses 

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

See accompanying notes and independent accountants’ compilation report. 

2023 2022 

Professional Expenses 
Consultants $ 2,292,152 $ 2,141,415 
Salaries and guaranteed payments 1,307,446 1,281,016 
Printing, photography and report processing 17,526 19,994 
Supplies and job materials 1,205 703 

$ 3,618,329 $ 3,443,128 

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses 
Salaries $ 218,164 $ 201,797 
Lease expense – right of use asset 100,528 100,528 
Payroll and other taxes 89,700 115,953 
Employee benefits 87,883 77,991 
Professional services 74,495 89,801 
Travel, meals and entertainment 55,614 65,254 
Software licensing 49,673 52,013 
Insurance 48,013 46,297 
Contributions and gifts 29,775 16,478 
Dues, subscriptions and licenses 14,858 9,016 
Telephone and fax 13,957 12,962 
Depreciation and amortization 12,750 13,930 
Other operating expenses 9,625 10,100 
Office expense 6,996 3,906 
Office supplies 6,372 4,949 
Postage 4,041 3,235 
Professional development 1,704 647 

$ 824,148 $ 824,857 
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V. Experience, Ability & References

TAB V – EXPERIENCE, ABILITY AND REFERENCES

Provide details of Proposer’s years of experience in the field of architectural/engineering design consulting 
services. Include number of projects, construction dollar value, and years of relevant experience.
Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC (M+Sa) was founded in 2011. The firm traces its origins to the 1974 
partnership of William Short and Jeremiah Ford III, a community-based general practice that undertook design 
and preservation projects for residential, commercial, and institutional clients. The firm is managed by three 
partners with a long history of collaboration who are actively involved in all projects.  Other key M+Sa staff 
hold professional degrees and have experience in design and historic preservation, with expertise in project 
management, programming, interior design, architectural history, and the application of LEED standards.

The work of M+Sa reflects a continued emphasis on both design and preservation, but the focus has become 
more national in scope. Our work is focused on cultural buildings of all types, including theaters and museums; 
public buildings; campus planning and design; and the preservation and rehabilitation of historic structures. 
M+Sa’s recent cultural, institutional, and civic work includes master planning for and restoration/renovations 
to the historic Tivoli Theatre and Tivoli Center, Chattanooga, Tennessee; the adaptive use of the former 
postal facility at the Nix Federal Building for new offices for the Philadelphia Passport Office in Philadelphia, 
PA; restoration and renovation of the Wheeler Opera House in Aspen, Colorado; façade restoration of 
the Milwaukee Federal Building and U.S. Courthouse, a design excellence project for the General Services 
Administration; and the design of Life Safety Improvements at the Statue of Liberty National Monument. 

M+Sa maintains a roster of approximately 40-50 active projects per year and has completed approximately 
750 projects since its founding in 2011. Projects range from small concept studies with fees of $30,000 to 
$250,000, to comprehensive renovation/restoration projects with construction values of $2 million to $80 
million. 

Provide a detailed narrative documenting the Proposer’s specific experience including,
but not limited to the following:

a. At least five (5) years of experience as the prime architectural/engineering design consultant
on building interior space renovations construction projects.

b. Experience with architectural/engineering design projects that include historic buildings and
entertainment/performing arts venues.

c. Experience with municipal or government agency construction projects.
d. Other types of related experience or information.

M+Sa has successfully completed comprehensive renovations and modernizations of existing buildings to 
enhance their utility and more effectively realize their intended programs. We regularly add new systems 
and provide increased accessibility to and within existing buildings, designing and phasing renovations to 
allow critical resources to remain operational; and treat exterior building materials to improve architectural, 
structural, and envelope performance.  We recognize that all existing buildings are living structures with active 
programs, and we work with clients to balance a range of preservation interests with renovation priorities.

The M+Sa team is skilled in achieving physical and programmatic accessibility for our designs at existing 
buildings and sites. Partner in Charge of Design Michael Schnoering, FAIA is a national leader in accessibility 
compliance, planning, and design for new and historic civic and cultural projects. He speaks and writes widely 
on these topics and provides technical guidance and resources for public venues and arts organizations in New 
Jersey, and elsewhere, seeking to make both their programs and facilities more accessible. 
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V. Experience, Ability & References

M+Sa has a national reputation for its high level of design and care of some of the nation’s most significant 
buildings and sites. Examples of ongoing and recently completed (within the last five years) projects include:

• President’s Park Fence, Washington, DC (National Park Service): The White House Complex
encompasses the eighteen acres of the White House grounds, West Executive Avenue, the Eisenhower
Executive Office Building, East Executive Avenue, and the Department of Treasury. The project area
is part of a National Historic Landmark site, so the new fence and all associated site, landscape,
and security improvements have been designed to respect its historic character and national
significance. Completed 2024.

• Nix Courthouse and Federal Building, Philadelphia, PA (General Services Administration): Adaptive
use of historic post office lobby and workroom for a new Department of State Passport Agency center.
The project included new art by local artists and interpretive exhibits showing passport, post office, and
building history. Completed 2024.

• Meridian Hill Park (Malcolm X Park), Washington, DC (National Park Service): Restoration of National
Historic Landmark park designed by landscape architects Horace Peaslee and Ferruccio Vitale, featuring
extensive functional and ornamental architectural elements created by John Joseph Earley using a form
of exposed aggregate concrete. Restoration included work at the perimeter wall and fence and
deteriorated concrete elements; landscape restoration; new site lighting; interpretive signage program;
plaza rehabilitation and barrier-free access. Completed 2024.

Our cultural work throughout M+Sa’s history has been exemplified by collaborations with some of the nation’s 
finest performing arts institutions, from the Westport Country Playhouse (Westport CT) to the Tarrytown 
Music Hall (Tarrytown NY). We are adept at balancing the practical and artistic needs of arts organizations 
with the limitations and opportunities of sensitive sites and historic structures. We have completed a range of 
projects focused on the design, renovation, and restoration of performance, patron, and support spaces. We 
know that carefully designed, imaginative performance spaces can dramatically enhance the work presented 
within, the audience experience, and on a larger scale, a community’s engagement with the arts. Examples of 
ongoing and recently completed (within the last five years) projects include:

• Wheeler Opera House, Aspen, CO (City of Aspen, CO): Restoration of the five-story, rusticated
sandstone and brick envelope of the landmark, 1889 performance venue. Completed 2023.

• Ripley Auditorium, Washington, DC (Smithsonian Institution): Renovation of the 1980s Ripley Lecture
Hall and its adjacent support spaces (located within the Smithsonian Quadrangle) to enhance the user
experience for presenters, in-person attendees and virtual participants. In progress.

• Darress Theatre, Boonton, NJ (Town of Boonton):  Master Plan and Concept Design for the renovation/
restoration of a 1920s, concrete, reverse-entry theater that served as a centerpiece for the
community’s downtown. Completed 2022.

• Embassy Theatre, Fort Wayne, IN (Embassy Theatre):  Preparation of an ADA compliance study for the
2471-seat venue constructed in 1928. Completed 2024.

Our approach to these and to all projects is based on a thorough understanding of the building and its site, the 
architects’ original intentions, and its larger physical context; of our client and their role within the community; 
and of a project’s program requirements that serve as the basis for design. We are committed to creating safe, 
secure, and fully accessible facilities, and to social, economic, and environmental sustainability in our projects. 
It is our goal to create innovative, high-quality environments that enhance and advance the users’ mission and 
become valued and enduring elements of a community’s architectural legacy.

Submit three (3) client references for whom Proposer has provided architectural/ engineering and 
inspection consulting services similar to those specified in this RFQ in the past five (5) years and who are 
agreeable to respond to a request from the City regarding proposer’s experience.
Please see enclosed Client Reference List. 44



V. Experience, Ability & References

Identify the primary contact person, supervisory personnel, and other key personnel (including 
subconsultants) who are designated to work on the City’s project. Provide a Standard Form (SF) 330, Section 
E for each individual. Include copies of relevant licenses and certifications relevant to the project.
Please see attached SF 330 Section E Resumes for each team member. 

Explain Proposer’s ability and commitment to maintain accessibility and availability for meetings, 
communications, and supervision.
As a firm with a diverse clientele, M+Sa maintains an average of 30-40 active projects at any given time. We 
are accustomed to meeting concurrent deadlines and have the capacity and resources to manage this project 
workload.

M+Sa project managers assign work to our experienced technical staff consistently over the course of each 
project, and our staff’s depth of experience allows additional personnel to be assigned to assist with deadlines 
when needed, under the supervision of the project manager. 

To help ensure timely completion of our projects, M+Sa reviews firm-wide project staffing on a monthly basis, 
along with weekly reviews of design team staffing requirements based on projected milestones and deadlines. 
We follow a process of project record-keeping and file and maintain documents in a consistent fashion so that 
projects run smoothly, allowing additional team members to join the project easily as needed. Our staff is 
small enough to provide a high level of care and attention to our projects with a meaningful level of partner 
involvement, yet large enough to design complex projects successfully in tight timeframes.

During the Design, Construction Documentation, and Administration phases of our work, our team takes a 
proactive approach to Project Management. Teamwork and consensus-building are fostered through good 
communication, timeliness, and a commitment to the project goals. Regular meetings among all team 
members ensure a product that is complete and coordinated. M+Sa typically holds weekly consultant team 
meetings to review outstanding issues, progress, schedule, milestones, and specific design issues. This method 
of regular contact has been very successful in maintaining project schedules and helping to ensure that all 
team members are producing coordinated and complete design deliverables. 

Sarah Ryan Architect, of St. Augustine, FL, will work in association with M+Sa, acting as an extension of M+Sa’s 
office in the region. Immediate/emergent project needs for on-site meetings with the City or at the project site 
will be staffed in this manner. 

Meetings are typically a combination of in-person, on-site discussions and virtual meetings, which are relatively 
simple to organize and allow for more frequent and immediate communication regardless of participants’ 
locations. Our collaboration with Sarah Rayn Architects for this project at the Crest Theatre allows us to have 
local teammates who are thoroughly versed in all aspects of the project and can be on-site quickly and easily 
when needed.

We believe that effective project management involves the following key activities:  thorough planning, the 
setting of goals, and the assignment of tasks; strong leadership and team building; clear communication and 
definition of responsibility; and a focus on quality and design excellence.

Describe any significant or unique awards received or accomplishments in previous, similar projects received 
by the prime consultant and/or any subcontractors (Team), or by individuals within the Team.
Please see enclosed List of Awards.
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V. Client Reference List

1. TIVOLI THEATRE AND CENTER
Nick Wilkinson
nick@TivoliChattanooga.com
399 McCallie Avenue
Chattanooga, TN 37402
423.432.1888
2019 - Ongoing
Master plan and design for the historic Theatre including an addition, restoration, renovation, and a
restaurant and rooftop lounge at the adjacent commercial block.

2. CIVIC THEATRE OF ALLENTOWN
William Sanders
wm@civictheatre.com
527 N 19th Street
Allentown, PA 18104
917.566.4827
2014 - 2023
Master plan and phased program of restoration, renovation, and expansion of early 20th century
theater. Preparation of National Register of Historic Places Nomination.

3. EICHELBERGER PERFORMING ARTS CENTER
David Adler
dadler@theeich.org
195 Stock Street, Suite 203
Hanover, PA 17331
O: 717.632.9356
C: 410.340.0420
2022 - 2023
Renovations to historic theater including more efficient seating layout with improved balcony sightlines.

4. NEWTOWN THEATER
Andrew Smith
andy@thenewtowntheatre.com
120 N State Street
Newtown, PA 18940
267.884.6329
2017 - 2021
Master plan, feasibility study, and renovation to reconfigure the main Auditorium floor, a new
accessible toilet room and seating on the main level, and auditorium paint and plaster repair and
restoration.
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E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT
(Complete one Section E for each key person.) 

12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE

Michael R. Schnoering, FAIA Partner in Charge/Lead Designer 
a. Total

36
b. With Current Firm

14 
15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (City and State)
Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC, Princeton, NJ 
16. EDUCATION (Degree and Specialization) 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (State and Discipline)

B.Arch., New Jersey Institute of Technology Registered Architect: CO, CT, DC, MD, MO, NJ, 
NY, NV, PA, VT, WI, WV, TN, TX, FL; NCARB Certified 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.)
Michael Schnoering is the firm’s Managing Partner and its lead designer.  Mr. Schnoering is a national leader in 
performing arts project planning and design and was elevated to Fellowship in the American Institute of Architects for his 
contributions to cultural project design and professional practice. He has spoken and written widely on planning for cultural 
projects, design challenges, and accessibility in existing buildings. He is a past member of the board of the League of 
Historic American Theaters, and currently service on the board of the NJ Theatre Alliance (NJTA) and is a member of 
NJTA’s Cultural Access Network Project. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS

a. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

Wheeler Opera House 
Aspen, CO 

PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES 

2007-2023 

CONSTRUCTION (if 
applicable) 
2013; 2020; 2023 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm 

Mr. Schnoering served as Partner in Charge for the exterior restoration, infrastructure upgrades, and site access 
improvements to the historic Wheeler Opera House, working with the City of Aspen (owner), CMa, CMc, and design 
team to design and construct the project on an expedited and phased schedule to accommodate weather and high-
volume visitor seasons. Prior to these projects, Mr. Schnoering led the design and reconstruction of the Opera House 
balcony, which incorporated state of the art audio-visual and lighting systems. 

b. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

 The Tivoli Theatre 
Chattanooga, TN 

PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES 

2018-ongoing 

CONSTRUCTION (if 
applicable) 
Ongoing 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm 

Mr. Schnoering is currently service as Partner in Charge and lead designer for the 65,000 SF renovation and 
restoration of the historic 1921 downtown theatre building and adaptive use of the adjacent 66,000 SF four-story 
1880s Tivoli Center. Renovations include new bar/concessions; a new donor lounge; and accessibility upgrades (new 
elevators, seating, and restrooms). Performance spaces and backstage areas will be renovated and re-designed, 
new projection and lighting systems will be installed, and community spaces including a new cinema with seating for 
250, classrooms, restaurant, and rooftop lounge will enliven the new arts center. 

c. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

Paepcke Memorial Building, The Aspen Institute 
Aspen, CO   

PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES 
2007-2010 

CONSTRUCTION (if 
applicable) 
2010 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm 
Mr. Schnoering served as the Partner in Charge for LEED Silver criteria renovations and additions to the 18,000 sf 
performance/lecture venue. The project included renovations to all public-facing and administrative spaces. New 
building systems were installed with ductwork routed unobtrusively between the existing and new roof and plenum 
structures. Two small additions at the rear of the auditorium increased seating capacity and accessible circulation.  

d. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

Civic Theatre of Allentown 
Allentown, PA 

PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES 

2013-2018 

CONSTRUCTION (if 
applicable) 
2018 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm 
The 1928 Civic Theatre, a 484‐seat venue and centerpiece of Allentown’s West End Theatre District, screens first-
run films, hosts locally produced live theatrical productions, and supports a robust educational program. Theatre514, 
located across the street, contains a small screening and rehearsal room. Mr. Schnoering served as Partner in 
Charge for the renovation of Theatre514 to upgrade finishes and lighting and expand seating to accommodate 99 
patrons. A renovation and restoration of the historic Civic Theatre followed, and the first two phases of a multi-part 
project have been completed. Work included upgrades to building infrastructure and renovation of the box office, 
lobby, and auditorium; installation of new auditorium seating; restoration of historic finishes; the design of new and 
upgraded theatrical systems; accessibility improvements; and the creation of new concession areas. 
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E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT
(Complete one Section E for each key person.) 

12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT 14. YEARS EXPEREINCE

Robert Forwood, AIA, LEED AP Project Manager 
a. Total

28
b. With Current Firm

9 
15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATON (City and State)
Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC, Princeton, NJ 
16. EDUCATION (Degree and Specialization) 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (State and Discipline)
Bachelor of Environmental Design (B.EnvD), Miami 
University 

Registered Architect: NY 
LEED AP Accredited Professional 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.)
Robert Forwood is an experienced designer and project manager with a background in renovation and new 
construction. He manages a range of civic, institutional, and cultural projects through all phases of design and 
construction. Mr. Forwood is a licensed Architect and a LEED Accredited Professional. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS

a. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

The Tivoli Theatre 
Chattanooga, TN

PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES 

2018-ongoing 

construction (if 
applicable) 

ongoing 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm 
Mr. Forwood is currently serving as Project Manager for the 65,000 SF renovation and restoration of the 
historic 1921 downtown theater building and adaptive use of the adjacent 66,000 SF four-story 1880s Tivoli 
Center. Renovations will incorporate ideas developed in an initial master plan developed by M+Sa including 
new bar/concessions throughout; a new donor lounge; and accessibility upgrades. Performance spaces and 
backstage areas will be renovated and re-designed, new projection and lighting systems will be installed, and 
community spaces including a new cinema with seating for 250, classrooms, restaurant, and rooftop lounge 
will enliven the new arts center. 

b. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

Civic Theatre of Allentown 
Allentown, PA 

PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES 

2013-2018 

CONSTRUCTION (if 
applicable) 
2018 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm 
The Civic Theatre was constructed in 1928 as a 1000-seat movie house. Now a 484‐seat venue and 
centerpiece of Allentown’s West End Theatre District, it screens first-run films, hosts locally produced live 
theatrical productions, and supports a robust educational program. Mr. Forwood served as Project Manager for 
the full renovation, restoration, and expansion of the historic Civic Theatre complex, which included upgrades 
to building infrastructure and renovation of the box office, lobby, and auditorium; installation of new 
auditorium seating; restoration of historic finishes; the design of new and upgraded theatrical systems; 
accessibility improvements; and the creation of new concession areas. 

c. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

Center for Creativity at the Rialto 
Westfield, NJ 

PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES 
2023 

CONSTRUCTION (if 
applicable) 
N/A 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm 
The 1922 Rialto Theater occupies a prominent downtown location. The Rialto closed in 2019; M+Sa was 
hired to work with The Center for Creativity to develop a plan for its reuse. Mr. Forwood served as the Project 
Manager for the effort. M+Sa’s concept design calls for a multi-purpose event space capable of hosting live 
performance with a seating capacity of approximately 250 people or more; a new accessible lobby with a 
repurposed retail space; gallery space for the display of artwork; and a multi-functional coffee 
bar/concessions/patron lounge. Original second floor office spaces will accommodate art and music 
classrooms, as well as small lectures and film screenings. A new dance studio is designed as part of a new 
second floor structure within the volume of the original auditorium. 

d. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

Ripley Auditorium (Smithsonian Institution) 
Washington, DC 

PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES 
2024-ongoing 

CONSTRUCTION (if 
applicable) 
N/A 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm

The Ripley Lecture Hall is a self-contained suite of underground spaces that hosts numerous public 
programs. M+Sa was engaged to assist in designing renovations for the Ripley Lecture Hall and its adjacent 
support spaces; Mr. Forwood is serving as Project Manager and Designer. The primary objectives are to 
enhance the user experience for presenters, in-person attendees and virtual participants. The scope includes 
upgrading the technical capabilities of the audiovisual systems, lighting and acoustics in the lecture hall, 
increasing the audience capacity, improving architectural finishes, integrating accessibility features for 
patrons, performers, and lecturers, and integrating new support functions to enhance the presenter’s 
experience. 48



E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT
(Complete one Section E for each key person.) 

12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE

Amy Mladjen, IIDA, NCIDQ Interior Designer 
a. Total

19
b. With Current Firm

9 
15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (City and State)
Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC, Princeton, NJ 
16. EDUCATION (Degree and Specialization) 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (State and Discipline)

BFA, Commercial Interior Design, Arcadia University;  
Study Abroad, Retail Interior Design, Accademia Italiana, 
Florence, Italy; History & Theory of Historic Preservation, Bucks 
County (PA) Community College 

NCIDQ Certified 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.)
Ms. Mladjen is an experienced interior designer and space planner. She leads the firm’s interior design practice and 
guides the treatment of interior architecture for many civic and cultural projects. She works with federal facility design 
standards including those of the National Park Service and the NPS Harpers Ferry Center for Interpretive Media. She is 
committed to solutions that are beautiful, functional, and best serve end users. Ms. Mladjen is a member of the 
International Interior Design Association and is an NCIDQ Certified Interior Designer. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS

a. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

The Tivoli Theatre 
Chattanooga, TN

PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES 

2018-ongoing 

CONSTRUCTION (if 
applicable) 

Ongoing 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm 
Ms. Mladjen serves as Interior Designer for the renovation of the historic 1921 theater building and adjacent four-
story 1880s Tivoli Center. Current renovations at the two buildings include new bar/concessions throughout; a donor 
lounge; and accessibility upgrades (new elevators, seating, and restrooms). Performance spaces and backstage 
areas are being refreshed, and new community spaces including a cinema, classrooms, restaurant, and rooftop 
lounge will enliven the new arts center. 

b. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

Civic Theatre of Allentown 
Allentown, PA 

PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES 
2013-18 

CONSTRUCTION (if 
applicable) 
2018 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm 

The Civic Theatre(1928) is now a 484‐seat venue and centerpiece of Allentown’s West End Theatre District. It screens 
first-run films, hosts locally produced live theatrical productions, and supports a robust educational program. Ms. 
Mladjen worked with a team on the Master Plan for the full renovation, restoration, and expansion of the historic 
complex and served as Interior Designer for the renovation of the box office, lobby, and auditorium; installation of 
new auditorium seating; restoration of historic finishes; the design of new and upgraded theatrical systems; 
accessibility improvements; and the creation of new concession areas. 

c. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

Newtown Theatre 
Newtown, PA 

PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES 

CONSTRUCTION (if 
applicable) 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm 
The 343-seat Newtown Theatre was constructed in 1883 as Newtown Hall, a non-denominational place of worship 
and community space. Ms. Mladjen recently served as Interior Designer for the renovations to provide an improved 
patron experience and access. The project included the reconfiguration of the main Auditorium floor, creation of a 
new accessible entry porch and accessible toilet room on the main level, new seating, auditorium paint/plaster 
repair and restoration, and a fully automatic fire protection system.  

d. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

The Embassy Theatre 
Fort Wayne, IN 

PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES 

2023 

CONSTRUCTION (if 
applicable) 
N/A 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm 

The Embassy Theatre engaged Mills + Schnoering Architects to better understand where accessible access can 
and should be improved to provide accommodations for building users and visitors in public and back-of-house 
spaces. Ms. Mladjen served as Interior Designer and Project Manager for the site survey and recommendations 
report. Concepts for barrier removal, such as accessible restrooms, seating, and vertical stage access were 
developed, and budget estimates for each use group were established. The resulting report provides a roadmap for 
phased implementation of accessible features as either standalone projects or as part of a larger construction 
campaign. 

Registered Interior Designer: FL, NJ
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E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT 
12. NAME

 
 13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT

 
 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE

Sarah Ryan - Owner Architect 

 
 a. TOTAL
21 

 
 b. WITH CURRENT FIRM
11 

 
15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (City and State)
Sarah Ryan Architect, LLC St Augustine FL  
16. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION)
Bachelor of Architecture / 2003 / Virginia Tech 
Master of Architecture / 2004 / Virginia Tech 

 
 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Registered Professional Architect: Florida, Virginia 

 
18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.)
Sarah Ryan has more than 20 years of architecture experience specializing in unique buildings and challenging sites to 
bring a fresh and creative vision to each project. Her strengths include working with the community and stakeholders to 
create a responsive design for the users and site. This includes St Augustine projects such as renovations at the 
Lightner museum, historic First Baptist Church renovations and a continuing services contract with the City of St 
Augustine. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS

a. 

 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)
Lightner Museum 
St Augustine FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2021 - ongoing 

 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2022 - ongoing 
 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm 
Complete renovation documentation for this National Register Landmark Museum in the heart of St. Augustine.  
Restoration and modernization including ADA compliant stairs, glass railings and bridges, systems, toilets, finishes, 
and all aspects of interior renovation of historic coquina concrete structure.   

b. 

 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)
First Baptist Church of St. Augustine Renovations Phase 1 & 2 
St. Augustine, FL 

 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2020 - 2024 

 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2022 - 2024 
 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm 
Historic 1915 church renovations.  
Complete renovations including window restoration, new MEP, new roof, and elevator addition. 

c. 

 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)
City of St. Augustine Drop In Center 
St. Augustine, FL 

 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2023 - ongoing 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 
2023 - ongoing 

 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm 
New Construction. Community space for helping homeless with daily services, meals, healthcare and a safe space to 
retreat during the day.  The new construction project is a series of modern pavilions under a live oak hammock with a 
campus feel and exterior entry to spaces.   

d. 

 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)
Historic Beach Hotel 
St. Augustine, FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2022 - ongoing 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 
2022-ongoing 

 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm 
Historic 1940 coquina clad structure is on the National Register of Historic Places for its importance in the national 
civil rights movement of the 1960s. The first floor is a dance studio and art space. The second floor is renovated for 
additional art studios.  Our scope included renovations to the second floor into art studios, a new elevator addition, 
new roof, new second floor windows, new canopy and addressing waterproofing issues.  

e. 

 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)
City of St. Augustine Continuing Service Contract 
St. Augustine, FL 

 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2022 - ongoing 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm 
Awarded a continuing services contract in 2022, Sarah Ryan Architect has been work with the City of St Augustine 
on 10 projects including historic renovations at the Pena Peck House, City Hall, multiple historic churches and new 
construction including a homeless drop in center, new marina structure and archaeology building.  

STANDARD FORM 330 

50



E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT 
12. NAME

 
 13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT

 
 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE

Mark McConnel Architect 

 
 a. TOTAL
30+ 

 
 b. WITH CURRENT FIRM
8 

 
15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (City and State)
Sarah Ryan Architect, LLC St Augustine FL  
16. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION)
Bachelor of Architecture / 1987 / UVA 
Master of Architecture / 1989 / MIT 
LEED accredited  

 
 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Registered Professional Architect: Virginia, West Virginia, North 
Carolina, Tennessee. 
Class A General Contractor Lic. 2705158022 

 
18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.)
Mark McConnel brings over 30 years of experience in historic preservation / adaptive reuse, advanced sustainable 
building design and construction documents including several award-winning architectural projects. His professional 
experience includes: 
• Historic preservation grant-funded projects
• Working with the Secretary of Interiors Standards for Historic Preservation
• Schematic Design / Design Development / contractor selection assistance
• Construction Document preparation
• Contractor selection
• Permitting and bidding assistance
• Contract negotiation
• Construction Administration

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS

a. 

 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)
Lightner Museum 
St Augustine FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2021 - ongoing 

CONSTRUCTION (If 
applicable)

2022 - ongoing 
 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm 
Complete renovation documentation for this National Register Landmark Museum in the heart of St. Augustine.  
Restoration and modernization including ADA compliant stairs, glass railings and bridges, systems, toilets, 
finishes, and all aspects of interior renovation of historic coquina concrete structure.   

b. 

 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)
First Baptist Church of St. Augustine Renovations Phase 1 & 2 
St. Augustine, FL 

 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2020 - 2024 

CONSTRUCTION (If 
applicable)

2022 - 2024 
 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm 
Historic 1915 church renovations.  
Complete renovations including window restoration, new MEP, new roof, and elevator addition. 

c 

 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)
Calvary Baptist Church 
Roanoke, Virginia 

 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2022 - ongoing 

CONSTRUCTION (If 
applicable)
ongoing 

 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm 
Complete architecture, engineering, construction administration, and historic rehabilitation direction on the 
rehabilitation of a $33 million church into a multi-use complex. Architect 

d. 

 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)
Masonic Temple / YMCA / American Legion Post Newburgh, New 
York 

 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2023 - ongoing 

CONSTRUCTION (If 
applicable)

 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm 
Conversion into a conference center and hotel of three adjacent and now connected historic buildings.  Directed 
design and compliance with Secretary of the Interior Standards.  Design and preservation consultant 

e. 

 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)
Centralia Fox Theater  
Centralia, Washington 

 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2019 

CONSTRUCTION (If 
applicable)

2020 
 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm 
Complete electronic documentation, HTC compliance and submission of applications to the National Park Service 
Design and preservation consultant.

STANDARD FORM 330 
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E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT

12. NAME  13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT  14. YEARS EXPERIENCE

Lane R. Hinkle, P.E. - President Mechanical Engineer of Record 
 a. TOTAL

35 
 b. WITH CURRENT FIRM

25 

15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (City and State)

Powell & Hinkle Engineering, P.A.   Orange Park, FL 
16. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION)

Bachelor of Science / 1988 / Electrical Engineering 
Masters of Science / 1991 / Electrical Engineering 

 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE)

Registered Professional Engineer:  Florida PE48076 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.)

Mr. Hinkle has over 30 years of experience in the field of mechanical and electrical engineering.  Since joining Powell & 
Hinkle Engineering, Mr. Hinkle has been responsible for the design for a broad array of projects and is currently 
responsible for all mechanical engineering projects.  His system design experience includes HVAC, plumbing, fire 
protection, process piping, thermal and vacuum processing equipment, high density computer room design, clean room 
design, chilled water, hot water, steam, compressed air, gas transfer systems and building automation system design. 
This experience includes new construction and renovations in both design bid and design build project teams. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS

a. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

Putnam County School District Pre-K to 6th School “A” 
Palatka, FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2023 - 2024 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2024 - 2025 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm

Mechanical engineering and design for the new single story, 170,000sf public school set to serve approximately 
1,000 students. HVAC systems designed for classrooms, common space, gymnasium, cafeteria, and office. 
Role: Mechanical Engineer of Record; Project Cost: Approx $60M 

b. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

St. Johns Classical Academy Addition (K-12) 
Fleming Island, FL  

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2020 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2021 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm

Mechanical systems design for the public charter school expansion. Approximate 10,340sf new 2-story classroom 
addition and approximately 1,650sf of demolitions and remodel in the existing building for restroom remodel and 
corridor enhancements.  Role: Mechanical Engineer of Record; Project Cost: $7.4M 

c 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

CCDS - Orange Park High School Office Renovation 
Orange Park, FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2022 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2022 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm

Mechanical engineering and design for the campus administration offices and school entrance renovation. HVAC 
systems were replaced and reconfigured for the new floor plan including new package rooftop VAV units and split 
system for the IT Room.  Role: Mechanical Engineer of Record; Project Cost: Approx $1M 

d. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

CCDS - Ridgeview High School Restroom Renovations 
Orange Park, FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2022 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2022 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm

Mechanical engineering and design for the existing restrooms of Building 5, 6, and 7.  Renovations include the 
replacement of plumbing fixtures, replacement of light fixtures, select replacement of mechanical devices, 
replacement of toilet partitions and accessories Role: Mechanical Engineer of Record; Project Cost: $400,000 

e. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

DCPS – Mechanical & Electrical Engineering Services 
Jacksonville, FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2017 - 2019 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2017 -2019 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm

MEPFP design services for renovations and upgrades to the county wide school facilities as a subcontractor member 
to an Architectural/Engineering Continuing Contract Services Holder. Projects included: Central AHU Replacement 
Project # M-83660 at Andrew A. Robinson Elementary No.262, Student Dining and Courtyard Renovations at Kirby-
Smith Middle School No. 25, Outside Air Unit Replacement at Tolbert Elementary School No. 3128,  Locker Rooms 
Remodeling at Douglas Anderson School of the Arts #107, Chilled Water Plant Renovation DCPS Administration 
Building No. 7001.   Role: Engineer of Record, Project Cost: $1M - $2M

STANDARD FORM 330 
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E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT

12. NAME  13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT  14. YEARS EXPERIENCE

Robert L. Hinkle, P.E.   Principal Engineer Plumbing, Fire Protection 
 a. TOTAL

51 
 b. WITH CURRENT FIRM

38 

15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (City and State)

Powell and Hinkle Engineering, P.A.   Orange Park, FL 
16. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION)

B.S. Chemical Engineering, 1965 
M.S. Engineering Science, 1970

 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE)

Professional Engineer: Florida PE29302 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.)

With over 45 years of engineering experience, Robert Hinkle has become proficient in the fields of mechanical and fire 
protection engineering. Mr. Hinkle has been and is currently in charge of all fire protection engineering projects and 
assigned mechanical engineering projects.  His system design experience includes HVAC; plumbing; fire protection; 
process piping; chilled water; hot water; steam; compressed air; gas; and building automation systems. In maintaining 
his PE License(s) in various states he has successfully completed numerous continuing education courses in focusing 
on sprinkler systems, gaseous fire suppression systems, smoke control systems and HVAC systems design. Mr. Hinkle 
continues to be at the forefront of the AEC industry and strives to bring innovations and solutions to the design process. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS

a. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

Putnam County School District Pre-K to 6th School “A” 
Palatka, FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2023 -2024 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2024 - 2025 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm

Mechanical engineering and design for the new single story, 170,000sf public school set to serve approximately 
1,000 students. Plumbing and fire protection systems designed for classrooms, common space, gymnasium, 
cafeteria, and office.   Role: Plumbing and Fire Protection Engineer; Project Cost: Approx $60M 

b. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

St. Johns Classical Academy Addition (K-12) 
Fleming Island, FL  

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2020 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2021 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm

Plumbing system designs for the public charter school expansion. Approximate 10,340sf new 2-story classroom 
addition and approximately 1,650sf of demolitions and remodel in the existing building for restroom remodel and 
corridor enhancements.   Role: Plumbing and Fire Protection Engineer; Project Cost: $7.4M 

c 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

The Bolles School San Jose Campus - Bolles Hall 2nd Floor 
Renovations  Jacksonville, FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2020 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2021 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm

Provided MEP systems evaluation and design for the 2nd Floor Renovations that include classroom to dormitory 
conversions with bathrooms. HVAC systems included the addition of an Outside Air Unit Supply to better enhance 
the 1st floor dining/kitchen areas along with 2nd & 3rd floor HVAC reconfigurations. Role: Mechanical Engineer, 
Project Cost $10M 

d. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

The Bolles School San Jose Campus – Schultz Hall Renovation 
Jacksonville, FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2024 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2024 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm

Provided MEP systems evaluation and design for the both interior and exterior renovation to enhance classroom 
spaces and corridors for the Science and English Department. Exterior building and roof renovations also completed. 
Role: Project Manager & Principal Engineer; Project Cost $NA 

e. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

Pineapple Cove Classical Academy- Phase I & II (K-8) 
West Melbourne, FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2021 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2021 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm

New building design and facility renovations for the charter school. The two-story addition’s first floor includes 
classrooms, cafeteria with stage, and a warming kitchen, a 16,500sf gymnasium with toilet and locker rooms. The 
second floor contains approximately 10,000sf of classrooms. Role: Principal Engineer; Project Cost $9.4M 

STANDARD FORM 330 
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E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT

12. NAME  13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT  14. YEARS EXPERIENCE

Tom Elder, P.E.   Vice President Electrical Engineer of Record 
 a. TOTAL

35 
 b. WITH CURRENT FIRM

29 

15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (City and State)

Powell & Hinkle Engineering, P.A.   Orange Park, FL 
16. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION)

University of Florida – B.S. Electrical Engineering /1994 

 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE)

Professional Engineer: Florida PE56121 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.)

Mr. Elder has over 30 years of experience in the field of electrical engineering and construction.   Prior to joining Powell 
& Hinkle Engineering, Mr. Elder worked as a Journeyman Electrician and has experience in both industrial and 
commercial electrical systems installations.  Mr. Elder has been responsible for the design for a broad array of projects 
and is currently responsible for all electrical engineering projects at P&H. His experience includes lighting analysis, point-
by- point photometric plans, power system distribution, emergency power generation, UPS systems, low voltage network 
cabling and fire alarm system design Mr. Elder ’s hands-on experience coupled with his education and design 
experience make him a highly effective design engineer with a practical and cost-effective outlook. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS

a. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

Putnam County School District Pre-K to 6th School “A” 
Palatka, FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2023 - 2024 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2024 - 2025 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm

Electrical engineering and design for the new single story, 170,000sf public school set to serve approximately 1,000 
students. Electrical lighting and power systems designed for classrooms, common space, gymnasium, cafeteria, and 
office.   Role: Electrical Engineer of Record; Project Cost: Approx $60M 

b. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

St. Johns Classical Academy Addition (K-12) 
Fleming Island, FL  

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2020 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2021 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE  Check if project performed with current firm

Electrical systems design for the public charter school expansion. Approximate 10,340sf new 2-story classroom 
addition and approximately 1,650sf of demolitions and remodel in the existing building for restroom remodel and 
corridor enhancements.   Role: Electrical Engineer of Record; Project Cost: $7.4M 

c 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

Pineapple Cove Classical Academy- Phase I & II (K-8) 
West Melbourne, FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2021 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2021 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm

New building design and facility renovations for the charter school. The two-story addition’s first floor includes 
classrooms, cafeteria with stage, and a warming kitchen, a 16,500sf gymnasium with toilet and locker rooms. The 
second floor contains approximately 10,000sf of classrooms. Role: Electrical Engineer of Record; Project Cost $9.4M 

d. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

CCDS - Orange Park High School Office Renovation 
Orange Park, FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2022 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2022 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm

Electrical engineering for the campus administration offices and school entrance renovation. Electrical systems were 
replaced and reconfigured for the new floor plan.  
Role: Electrical Engineer of Record; Project Cost: Approx $1M 

e. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

CCDS - Ridgeview High School Restroom Renovations 
Orange Park, FL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

2022 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

2022 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm

Electrical engineering and design provided for the existing restrooms of Building 5, 6, and 7.  Renovations include 
the replacement of plumbing fixtures, replacement of light fixtures, select replacement of mechanical devices, 
replacement of toilet partitions and restroom accessories Role: Electrical Engineer of Record; Project Cost: $400,000 

STANDARD FORM 330 
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12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.)

E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT
(Complete one Section E for each key person.)

14. YEARS EXPERIENCE

b. WITH CURRENT FIRMa. TOTAL

17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (State and Discipline)16. EDUCATION (Degree and Specialization)

15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION  (City and State)

STANDARD FORM 330 (REV. 7/2021) PAGE 2

a.

b.

c.

d.

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State)

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

e.

Check if project performed with current firm

Check if project performed with current firm

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE

Check if project performed with current firm

Check if project performed with current firm

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (If applicable)

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm

Jude T. Kostage, P.E.

Atlantic Engineering Services; Jacksonville, Florida

B.S. in Architectural Engineering; University of Wyoming 
M.S. in Civil Engineering; University of Wyoming

American Institute of Steel Construction (AISC), American Concrete Institute (ACI), The Florida Lighthouse Association 
(Florida Coast First Chapter)

University of North Florida Student Union 
Jacksonville, Florida

The LEED Gold-certified UNF Student Union spans 157,000 square feet across two three-story buildings linked by an 
elevated walkway. It features offices, meeting rooms, dining areas, and a theater. The composite steel structure has a 
metal deck roof, precast or cast-in-place concrete shear walls, and a curtain wall precast panel exterior. Construction 
cost: $50,000,000

Conducted a visual inspection of the alleyway bracing and damaged brick encasement at the Historic Five Points 
Theatre in Jacksonville, Florida. Also reviewed the roof framing for two new rooftop mechanical units. Evaluation and 
Report cost: $1,500

The project involved a visual condition survey of the St. Augustine Amphitheater to assess structural damage from 
Hurricane Irma, focusing on the stage roof and tensioned roof structure over the seating. Survey and Report cost: 
$2,750

Structural modifications for the Five Points Theatre tenant fit-out include framing for rooftop units, an 8’x8’ wall opening, 
and a loading dock extension. The stage will be rebuilt to support a 150 PSF live load, extended into the auditorium, and 
raised to match the kitchen elevation. Additional upgrades include new rigging tower foundations and a mezzanine 
expansion with steel beams, a concrete deck,and new columns. Construction cost: 1,200,000.

The project was a new stage and covered flex field, multi-level bleachers, and support buildings. The flex field cover is a 
complex steel space frame structure. The bleachers are concrete framed with interior masonry walls on the first level. 
The stage is a concrete/masonry structure and support buildings are steel and masonry. Construction: $59,000,000

Historic Five Points Theatre - Structural Assessment 
Jacksonville, Florida

Ampitheater Inspection - Hurricane Irma  
St Augustine, Florida

Five Point Theatre - Tenant Fit-out 
Jacksonville, FL

EverBank Stadium/Daily's Place Amphitheater - Threshold Inspections 
Jacksonville, FL

Professional Engineer, FL (53931) 
Special Inspector, FL (2051)

Structural Engineer 32 31

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

2006 2009

2024 N/A

2017

2024

20172016

N/A
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E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT 
(Complete one Section E for each key person.) 

12. NAME 
 
Jody Kovalick 

13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT 
 
Theatre Consultant 

14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 
a. TOTAL 

22 
b. WITH CURRENT FIRM 

21 
15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Schuler Shook - New York, NY 
16. EDUCATION (Degree and Specialization) 

MFA - Yale School of Drama 
BFA - Pennsylvania State University 

 
 
 

17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (State and Discipline) 

N/A 

 
 

 
18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.) 

American Society of Theatre Consultants: U.S. Institute for Theatre Technology 

 
19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

 
 
 
 

a. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 
The Wisconsin Union Theatre and the Frederic March Play Circle, 
Madison, WI 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2013 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2014 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 

Theatre Consulting and architectural lighting design for an extensive renovation of Neidorff-Karpati Hall at the Historic 
Manhattan School of Music. The 670-seat venue included many changes and upgrades. 

 
 
 
 

b. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Cultural Center at Ocean Reef Club, Key Largo, FL 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2022 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2023 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 

The renovation of the 300-seat theatre provided refreshed finishes, improved technical systems, LED technologies and 
new infrastructure to accommodate production systems, as well as back of house and front of house needs. 

 
 
 
 

c. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

University of Mary Washington, Fredericksburg, VA 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2006 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2008 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 

Theatre consulting and architectural lighting services for the renovation of Klein Theatre, a 233-seat proscenium stage 
venue, Studio 115, a 40-seat studio theatre; and Dodd Auditorium, a 1,200-seat venue. Cost was $3.5 million. 

 
 
 
 

d. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Paramount Theatre, Cedar Rapids, IA 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2010 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2012 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 
Theatre planning and architectural lighting design for the renovation and expansion of a historic theatre. The $34.7 
million renovation included an expanded stage house, additional rigging, theatrical lighting upgrades, modern audience 
seating, a new orchestra shell and orchestra lift, and historically accurate and energy efficient lighting. 

 
 
 
 

e. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

American Players Theatre, Touchstone Theatre, Spring Green, WI 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2008 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 
2009 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 

Theatre consulting, planning and equipment design for a 200-seat flexible theatre. The theatre combines elements of an 
experimental theatre with those of a thrust stage with superior sightines, state of the art lighting and dimming system, 
modern dressing rooms, modern scene shop and rehearsal space. 

STANDARD FORM 330 (REV. 7/2021) PAGE 2 
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E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT
(Complete one Section E for each key person.) 

12. NAME 

Paul Whitaker 

13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT

Theatre Consultant/Architectural Lighting 

14. YEARS EXPERIENCE
a. TOTAL 

24 
b. WITH CURRENT FIRM 

22 
15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Schuler Shook - Minneapolis, MN 
16. EDUCATION (Degree and Specialization) 

MFA - Yale School of Drama BA - 
Macalester College 

17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (State and Discipline) 

N/A 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.) 

American Society of Theatre Consultants: U.S. Institute for Theatre Technology 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS

a. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 
Manhattan School of Music, New York, NY 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2016 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2018 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 

Theatre Consulting and architectural lighting design for an extensive renovation of the historic Union Theatre, Play 
Circle Theater, and sections of the Memorial Union building. This improved accessibility, upgraded infrastructure and 
equipment, and created sustainability throughout the complex. Cost was $72 million. 

b. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Emerson Colonial Theatre, Boston, MA 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2016 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2018 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm

Renovation of a historic 1900 proscenium theatre for local theatre, concerts, and pre-Broadway productions. Renovation 
of the orchestra seating provided better sightlines, accessibility, and technical accommodations in the hall. All dressing 
rooms were replaced and stage areas maximized for flexibility and back of house support. 

c. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Luminary Arts Center 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2020 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2022 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm

Theatre planning and lighting design services, including a feasibility study. An extensive renovation reoriented the 
theatre to improve performer stage access and increase backstage space and storage. A tension wire grid replaced the 
pipe grid to improve access. A new seating platform system provides code compliant seating. Cost was $6 million. 

d. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Pablo Center at the Confluence, Eau Claire, WI 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2016 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2018 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 
Theatre consulting and architectural lighting design for a 1,200-seat proscenium theatre, a flexible 400-seat venue, a 
rehearsal space, art gallery, recording studio, production areas, and public spaces. The 130,000 square foot facility is 
used by the community, University of Wisconsin, and the Eau Claire Regional Theatre. Cast was $45 million. 

e. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Palace Theatre, St. Paul, MN 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2015 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 
2017 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 

Theatre consulting and architectural lighting design for a historic theatre that was once a 1916 vaudville house that was 
closed for 30 years. The facility was updated with technically savvy equipment that accommodates the needs of live 
productions. Cost was $15 million. 
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E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT
(Complete one Section E for each key person.) 

12. NAME 

Sten Severson 

13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT

Audio Video Consultant 

14. YEARS EXPERIENCE
a. TOTAL 

12 
b. WITH CURRENT FIRM 

2 
15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Schuler Shook - New York, NY 
16. EDUCATION (Degree and Specialization) 

BS - Gustavus Adolphus College - Major in Theatre, Minor in 
Music 

17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (State and Discipline) 

N/A 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.) 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS

a. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Marina Conference Center, Luanda, Angola 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2024 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 

Audio, video, and conferencing systems for a new facility designed to hold an African Union meeting including a large 
circular meeting hall, three thousand seat theatre, business center, and support areas. 

b. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Apollo High School Theatre Renovation, St. Cloud, Minnesota 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2024 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2025 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm

Renovation of an early 1970s era theatre, completely replacing the existing audio video systems to meet 
modern standards for theatre production and teaching. 

c. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Tulsa Performing Arts Center Audio System Replacement, Tulsa, 
Oklahoma 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2024 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2025 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm

Complete replacement of performance speaker systems and mixing console systems in the 2,300 Chapman 
Music Hall as well as the mixing console systems in the 500 seat Williams Theatre. 

d. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Lafayette Theatre, Layfayette, Indiana 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2024 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 

Audio video systems for a gut renovated 500 seat theatre to present film, concerts, and musical theatre performances. 

e. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Walker West Music Academy, St. Paul, Minnesota 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
2023 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2025 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 

Audio and Video systems for a music school renovating an existing building into multiple performance, practice, and 
instruction rooms. 

STANDARD FORM 330 (REV. 7/2021) PAGE 2 

58



E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT
(Complete one Section E for each key person.) 

12. NAME 

David Greenberg 

13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT

Acoustical Consultant 

14. YEARS EXPERIENCE
a. TOTAL 

40 
b. WITH CURRENT FIRM 

24 
15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Creative Acoustics, LLC, Las Cruces NM 
16. EDUCATION (Degree and Specialization) 

Pennsylvania State University M.S. in Acoustics 
Purdue University B.S. in Interdisciplinary Engineering 
Indiana University B.S. in Music with Minor in Physics 

17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (State and Discipline) 

Not Applicable 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.) 

Organizations - Acoustical Society of America, National Council of Acoustical Consultants, American Institute of Architects 
Select Awards - AIA Hampton Roads Honor Award, 2017; AIA Merit Award New Orleans Chapter, 2016 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS

a. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Academy Center of the Arts Historic Renovation, Lynchburg VA 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2018 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2018 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm 

ACOUSTICS CONSULTANT for complete restoration and renovation of the 1905 built 850-seat proscenium theatre. 
Project size is 100,000 SF. Project cost was $30M. Noise and vibration control of mechanical and electrical systems was 
also included. 

b. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Samford University Buchanan Hall Renovation, Homewood AL 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2022 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2022 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm
ACOUSTICS CONSULTANT for renovation of 26,000 SF music school building built in 1958. The project upgraded the 
building to include state-of-the-art acoustics studios, rehearsal rooms, practice rooms, labs, classrooms, and a recording 
suite. Noise and vibration control of mechanical and electrical systems was included. Cost was $15M. 

c. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Longwood University New Music Facilities, Farmville VA 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm
ACOUSTICS CONSULTANT for new 61,000 SF music school and 500-seat concert hall. Project design phases are 
complete. Music school will include classrooms, rehearsal spaces, teaching studios, and practice rooms. Noise and 
vibration control of mechanical and electrical systems is included. Estimated cost is $71M. 

d. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Queens University Auditorium Renovation & Expansion, Charlotte NC 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2019 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2019 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm 
ACOUSTICS CONSULTANT for the Gambrell Center which renovated a 1966 performing arts building. The renovation 
and addition of the 63,000 SF venue included a 1000-seat auditorium, recital hall, rehearsal spaces, teaching studios, 
and practice rooms. Noise and vibration control of mechanical and electrical systems was included. Cost was $23M. 

e. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Randolph-Macon College Blackwell Theatre Renovation, Ashland VA 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2022 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2022 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed with current firm 
ACOUSTICS CONSULTANT for upgrades to 650-seat auditorium built in 1952 and addition of new 19,200 SF building 
with flex theatre, rehearsal rooms, amd teaching studios. Noise and vibration control for mechanical and electrical 
systems was provided. Cost was $13M. 
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E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT

(Complete one Section E for each key person.) 

12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

Daniel de Arostegui Director 
a. TOTAL 

30 
l
b. WITH CUR

�
ENT FIRM 

15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (City and state) 

Dharam Consulting LLC 
16. EDUCATION (Degree and Specialization) 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (State and Discipline) 

BBSc (Hons), Geography & Geomatics, University of Newcastle 
Upon Tyne, UK 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.) 

Dan excels in team management and project oversight, guiding initiatives from their inception to successful completion. His 
skill set encompasses early-phase cost modeling, cost planning, and comprehensive cost management throughout all 
stages of construction projects. 

a. 

b. 

C. 

d. 

e. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Charlotte Theater Renovation 
(2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
!
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

Charlotte, NC 2023 N/A 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE D Check if project performed with current firm 

Restoration the long-vacant Carolina Theatre to its original grandeur and create a vital civic engagement space. The 

team is committed to maintaining the historical design, recreating the murals in the 1927 style and restoring the original 

fac;ade and decorative plaster and moldings. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Adrienne Arsht Center for Performing Arts

Miami, FL

(2) YEAR COMPLETED 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

!
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2023 N/A 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE □ Check if project performed with current firm 
This project is a renovation of the Art Deco Sears Tower, the construction of two new buildings (the 2,400-seat Sanford 
and Dolores Ziff Ballet Opera House with a 200-seat flexible space Studio theater and the 2,200-seat Carnival Concert 
Hall), and a 57,00 SF Plaza for the Arts. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

National Medal of Honor Museum

Arlington, TX
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

!
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2019 N/A 

D Check if project performed with current firm 
A new 130,000 GSF facility, the Exhibition Hall is supported by five concrete mega columns, each representing a branch 
of the U.S. Armed Forces. The Museum complex features a sunken, open courtyard, the Rotunda of Honor, a space that 
functions as the main entrance point into the facility and a public space for gathering prior to entering the Museum. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and state) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

University of Tennessee Southern - Building Envelope Repairs PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
!
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

Pulaski, TN 2024 N/A 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 0 Check if project performed with current firm 
This project is exterior envelope renovations of the historical Colonial Hall and the Gault Fine Arts Building. The 
comprehensive work spanned the entire building envelope, from the protective roof down to foundational repairs and 
architectural restorations. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Aurora Library & Cultural Services Facilities Master Plan PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
!
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

Aurora, CO In Progress N/A 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 0 Check if project performed with current firm 
A cultural services facilities master plan to guide facility and capital planning at various facilities including Aurora Fox Arts
Center/Theatre, Aurora History Museum, Bicentennial Art Center and the Meadowood Recreation Center.
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60



E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THIS CONTRACT
(Complete one Section E for each key person.) 

12. NAME 

Anthony Lizzi 

13. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT

Senior Associate 

14. YEARS EXPERIENCE

a. TOTAL 

24 
b. WITH CURRENT FIRM 

12 
15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Dharam Consulting LLC 
16. EDUCATION (Degree and Specialization) 

Bachelor’s Degree in Mechanical Engineering 
Ryerson University, Toronto, Canada 

17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (State and Discipline) 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, etc.) 

With over 24 years of experience, Anthony is an established cost advisor who has been involved in all stages of pre- 
construction. He is adept at leading teams and working alongside owners, architects, construction managers, planners and 
engineers to ensure that the owner’s expectations have been met and are reflected in the program and budget. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS

a. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Vineyard Theatre Renovation 
New York, NY 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2022 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

N/A 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 

This project is a renovation with upgrades to the lobby & public entrance space, theatre support spaces, technical 
infrastructure & equipment, and acoustic performance, all while enhancing the theatre’s space and flexibility to create an 
artistic home for daring artists, and to nurture their unique voices. Role: Sr. Estimator; Cost: $9.8M; Size:12,866 SF 

b. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

The Chocolate Factory Theater Adaptive Reuse 
Long Island City, NY 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2023 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

N/A 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 
A renovation of a 7,500 SF single story warehouse building to include a performance space, community area, offices, 
dressing room and other support spaces. Role: Sr. Estimator; Cost: Confidential; Size: 7,500 SF 

c. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Jacob's Pillow Dance Theatre 
Becket, MA 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2022 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

N/A 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 
This is a 17,692 SF, LEED Gold, state-of-the-art dance theatre and multi-use facility. The program includes a theatre, 
workshop, foyer, dressing and green rooms, and support spaces. The building envelope is charred wood cladding and 
has an operable external wall system to open for outdoor events. Role: Sr. Estimator; Cost: $26.6M; Size: 17,692 SF 

d. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

Lucille Lortel Theatre Building Renovation, New York, NY 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2024 

CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

N/A 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 
Renovation of a 3-story 5,047 GSF building that will add a new elevator in the northeast portion of the building, a 
performance studio and rehearsal space on the 1st floor, office and artist work spaces on the 2nd and 3rd floors, and an 
expansion to the 3rd floor. Role: Sr. Estimator; Cost: Confidential; Size: 5,047 GSF 

e. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) 

The Shed 
New York, NY 

(2) YEAR COMPLETED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2013 
CONSTRUCTION (If applicable) 

2019 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ✔ Check if project performed with current firm 
A new 200,000 SF cultural and performance venue at the heart of the Hudson Yard development .Provided early phase 
business case capital cost advice, budget setting, and Concept Design to Construction Document, cost & risk, and value 
engineering support. Role: Sr. Estimator; Cost: $475M; Size: 200K SF 
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Awards 

 

 
FIRM AWARDS 

MILLS + SCHNOERING ARCHITECTS, LLC 
Princeton, New Jersey 

2020 Firm of the Year Award, American Institute of Architects (AIA), New Jersey Chapter 

PROJECT AWARDS 

ALUMNI CENTER, RUTGERS UNIVERSITY - NEWARK 
Newark, New Jersey 

2020 Preservation Achievement Award, New Jersey Historic Preservation Awards 

ASPEN COMMUNITY CHURCH 
Aspen, Colorado 

2014 Elizabeth Paepcke Award, City of Aspen Historic Preservation Commission 

CARPENTERS’ HALL 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 

2024 Preservation Achievement Award, Preservation Alliance for Greater Philadelphia 
2023 Best Historic Preservation Project, Construction Excellence Awards, General Building Contractors Association 

CIVIC THEATRE 
Allentown, Pennsylvania 

2019 Construction Project Award in Rehabilitation, Preservation Pennsylvania 
2019 Merit Award for Built Preservation, New Jersey AIA Design Awards 

CLARA BARTON APARTMENT 
Washington, District of Columbia 

2015 District of Columbia Award for Excellence in Historic Preservation, DC Preservation League 
2016 Honor Award in Preservation, General Services Administration Design Awards 
2016 Historic Preservation Awards, New Jersey Historic Preservation Office 

HILL COLLEGE HOUSE, UNIVERSITY OF PENNSYLVANIA 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 

2018 Award of Merit Renovation/Restoration, Engineering News-Record Mid Atlantic 
2018 Merit Award, New Jersey AIA Design Awards 
2018 Sustainability in Historic Preservation Award, Preservation Pennsylvania 
2018 Grand Jury Award, Preservation Alliance for Greater Philadelphia 
2018 Design Award of Excellence, Docomomo US Modernism in America Award 
2018 Finish First Award (Sustainable/LEED category), Interior Finish Contractors Association 
2017 Best Makeover, Curbed Philly 

 
 LANSDOWNE THEATER 
 Lansdowne, Pennsylvania 
2016 Preservation Award, Outdoor Lobby Renovation, Heritage Commission of Delaware County 
 
 LOUIS ARMSTRONG HOUSE 
 Queens, New York, NY 
2014 National Medal for Museum and Library Service
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Awards 

MERCHANTS’ EXCHANGE BUILDING 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 

2015 Construction Project Award, Pennsylvania Historic Preservation Awards, Preservation Pennsylvania 

MERIDIAN HILL PARK 
Washington, District of Columbia 

2023 D.C. Awards for Excellence in Historic Preservation, D.C. Preservation League

NEWTOWN THEATRE 
Newtown, Pennsylvania 

2022 Grand Jury Award, Preservation Alliance for Greater Philadelphia 

PEARL S. BUCK HOUSE 
Perkasie, Pennsylvania 

2014 Preservation Achievement Award, Preservation Alliance for Greater Philadelphia 

PRESIDENT’S PARK FENCE 
Washington, DC 

  2014   Craftsmanship Award Winner, Washington Building Congress  

PRINCETON UNIVERSITY 2026 CAMPUS PLAN 
Princeton, New Jersey  

2018 Merit Award, Planning for an Existing Campus, Society for College and University Planning Excellence Awards 
(team led by Urban Strategies Inc.) 

ROBERT N. C. NIX SR. FEDERAL BUILDING 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 

2024 Pennsylvania Historic Preservation Award, Preservation Pennsylvania 
2023 Preservation Achievement Award, Preservation Alliance for Greater Philadelphia 
2023 Honorable Mention, Historic Preservation, Interior Design Awards 

American Society of Interior Designers, Pennsylvania East 

STATUE OF LIBERTY NATIONAL MONUMENT LIFE & SAFETY UPDATES 
Liberty Island, New York 

2014 Gold Award, Building Design + Construction Awards 

STOUTSBURG SOURLAND AFRICAN AMERICAN MUSEUM 
Skillman, New Jersey 

2023 Dr. Doris C. Carpenter Excellence Award, Historic Preservation Awards, New Jersey Historic Preservation Office 

THE LOUIS I. KAHN BATH HOUSE AND DAY CAMP PAVILIONS 
Ewing, New Jersey 

2021 Conservation Through Activism Award, Rehabilitation Awards, Docomomo International Awards 
2014 Design Citation of Merit, Docomomo US Modernism in America Award 

WHEELER OPERA HOUSE 
Aspen, Colorado 

2023 Award for Outstanding Preservation Efforts, City of Aspen Historic Preservation Commission Awards 
2023 Award for Excellence in Historic Preservation, Colorado Preservation Inc. Alpine Bank State Honor Award 
2014 Honor Award, Historic Preservation, New Jersey AIA Design Award
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a. SIGNATURE b. DATE 

2/10/2025 

ARCHITECT-ENGINEER QUALIFICATIONS 
1. SOLICITATION NUMBER (If any) 

2025-019 
PART II - GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS 

(If a firm has branch offices, complete for each specific branch office seeking work.) 
2a. FIRM (or Branch Office) NAME 
Mills + Schnoering Architects, LLC 

3. YEAR ESTABLISHED
2011 

4. UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER
HNMWJBXGNWL4 

2b. STREET 
200 Forrestal Road, Suite 3A 

5. OWNERSHIP
a. TYPE 

Limited Liability Company 2c. CITY 
Princeton 

2d. STATE 
NJ 

2e. ZIP CODE 
08540 b. SMALL BUSINESS STATUS

NJSBE 6a. POINT OF CONTACT NAME AND TITLE 

Michael R. Schnoering, FAIA, Partner 7. NAME OF FIRM (If Block 2a is a Branch Office) 

6b. TELEPHONE NUMBER 
609-681-2480

6c. EMAIL ADDRESS 
mikes@msarchitectsllc.com 

8a. FORMER FIRM NAME(S) (If any) 8b. YEAR ESTABLISHED 8c. UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER 

Farewell Mills Gatsch Architects, LLC 

1974 07-375-9045

9. EMPLOYEES BY DISCIPLINE 10. PROFILE OF FIRM'S EXPERIENCE
AND ANNUAL AVERAGE REVENUE FOR LAST 5 YEARS 

a. Function
Code b. Discipline

c. Number of Employees a. Profile
Code b. Experience

c. Revenue Index
Number

(see below) (1) FIRM (2) BRANCH
02 Administrative 2 A11 Auditoriums & Theaters 4 
06 Architect 7 C06 Churches; Chapels 1 
08 CADD Technician 5 E02 Educational Facilities; Classrooms 2 

Architectural Historian 1 H08 Historical Preservation 5 
37 Interior Design 2 H11 Housing (Residential; Multi-family) 1 

L04 Libraries; Museums; Galleries 2 
J01 Judicial and Courtroom Facilities 4 
D07 Dining Halls, Clubs, Restaurants 1 
P06 Planning - Site, Installation, Project 2 
O01 Office Buildings; Industrial Parks 4 
R06 Rehabilitation (Bldgs; Structures; 4 

Facilities) 

Other Employees 
Total 

11. ANNUAL AVERAGE PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES REVENUES OF FIRM

FOR LAST 3 YEARS 
(Insert revenue index number shown at right) 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUE INDEX NUMBER 
1. Less than $100,000 6. $2 million to less than $5 million
2. $100,000 to less than $250,000 7. $5 million to less than $10 million
3. $250,000 to less than $500,000 8. $10 million to less than $25 million
4. $500,000 to less than $1 million 9. $25 million to less than $50 million
5. $1 million to less than $2 million 10. $50 million or greater

a. Federal Work 6 
b. Non-Federal Work 5 
c. Total Work 6

12. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
The foregoing is a statement of facts.

c. NAME AND TITLE
Michael R. Schnoering, FAIA, Partner 

17
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ARCHITECT-ENGINEER QUALIFICATIONS 
1. SOLICITATION NUMBER (If any)

RFQ-PW2023-03-0-2023/SW

PART II – GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS 
(If a firm has branch offices, complete for each specific branch office seeking work.) 

2a.  FIRM (OR BRANCH OFFICE) NAME 
Powell and Hinkle Engineering, P.A 

3. YEAR ESTABLISHED
1986

4. DUNS NUMBER
175078310

2b.  STREET 
1409 Kingsley Avenue, Building 12A 5. OWNERSHIP

2c.  CITY 
Orange Park 

2d.  State 
FL 

2e.  Zip Code 
32073 

a. TYPE
C Corporation

6a.  PRINT OF CONTACT NAME AND TITLE 
Lane R. Hinkle, P.E. 

b. SMALL BUSINESS STATUS
n/a

6b.  TELEPHONE NUMBER 
(904)264-5570

6c.  E-MAIL ADDRESS 
lhinkle@powellandhinkle.
com 

7. NAME OF FIRM (If block 2a is a branch office)
n/a

8a.  FORMER FIRM NAMES(S) (If any) 8b.  YR. ESTABLISHED 8c.  DUNS NUMBER 

9. EMPLOYEES BY DISCIPLINE 10. PROFILE OF FIRM’S EXPERIENCE AND
ANNUAL AVERAGE REVENUE FOR LAST 5 YEARS 

a.  
Function 

Code 
b. Discipline

c. No. of Employees
a. Profile

Code b. Experience

c. Revenue
Index 

Number
(See Below) 

(1) FIRM (2) BRANCH

21 
 
Electrical Engineer 1 E03 

 
Electrical Studies and Design 4 

42 
 
Mechanical Engineer 7 H04 

 
Heating; Ventilating; Air 
Conditioning  

4 
 
Senior Mechanical Designer 3 P07 

 
Plumbing & Piping Design 3  

Senior Electrical Designer 4 F03 
 
Fire Protection 2 

Other Employees 4 
TOTAL 19 

11. ANNUAL AVERAGE PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES REVENUES OF FIRM FOR LAST 3 

YEARS 
 (Insert revenue index number shown at right) 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUE INDEX NUMBER 

1. Less than $100,000
2. $100,000 to less than $250,000
3. $250,000 to less than $500,000
4. $500,000 to less than $1 million
5. $1 million to less than $2 million

6. $2 million to less than $5 million
7. $5 million to less than $10 million
8. $10 million to less than $25 million
9. $25 million to less than $50 million
10. $50 million or greater

a. Federal Work 3 
b. Non-Federal
Work

5 

c. Total Work 5 

12. AUTHORIZATION REPRESENTATIVE
The foregoing is a statement of facts.

a. SIGNATURE b. DATE
01/27/2025

c. NAME AND TITLE
Lane R. Hinkle, P.E.  Principal Engineer, President
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PART II - GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS 
(If a firm has branch offices, complete for each specific branch office seeking work.)

a. SIGNATURE 

ARCHITECT-ENGINEER QUALIFICATIONS

2a.  FIRM (or Branch Office) NAME

2b.  STREET

2c.  CITY 2d.  STATE 2e.  ZIP CODE

3. YEAR ESTABLISHED 4. UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER 

5. OWNERSHIP

b. Discipline
c. Number of Employees

10. PROFILE OF FIRM'S EXPERIENCE
AND ANNUAL AVERAGE REVENUE FOR LAST 5 YEARS

b. Experience
c. Revenue Index

Number
(see below)

STANDARD FORM 330 (REV. 7/2021) PAGE 6

1. SOLICITATION NUMBER (If any)

8a.  FORMER FIRM NAME(S) (If any) 8b.  YEAR ESTABLISHED

9. EMPLOYEES BY DISCIPLINE

Total

(1) FIRM (2) BRANCH

1. Less than $100,000
2. $100,000 to less than $250,000
3. $250,000 to less than $500,000
4. $500,000 to less than $1 million
5. $1 million to less than $2 million

11. ANNUAL AVERAGE PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES REVENUES OF FIRM

FOR LAST 3 YEARS 
(Insert revenue index number shown at right)

7. NAME OF FIRM (If Block 2a is a Branch Office)

6a.  POINT OF CONTACT NAME AND TITLE

6c.  EMAIL ADDRESS

8c.  UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER

a. Federal Work
b. Non-Federal Work
c. Total Work

12. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
The foregoing is a statement of facts.

b. DATE

c. NAME AND TITLE

a. Function
Code

a. Profile
Code

6b.  TELEPHONE NUMBER

a. TYPE

b. SMALL BUSINESS STATUS

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUE INDEX NUMBER

6. $2 million to less than $5 million
7. $5 million to less than $10 million
8. $10 million to less than $25 million
9. $25 million to less than $50 million

10. $50 million or greater

Other Employees

2025-019

Corporation

Yes

SEC Holding Company DBA Atlantic 
Engineering Services

H.W. Keister Associates, Inc. DBA Atlantic Engineering Services of Jacksonville

4141 Southpoint Drive East, Suite C

Jacksonville

Jude T. Kostage; Principal

02 A06
A11
C06
C10
D07
E02
F02
G01
H01

P08
R04
R06
S09
W01

O01
L04
J01
I01
H11
H10
H09
H08

Administrative Airport; Terminals and Hangars
Auditoriums and Theaters
Churches; Chapels
Commercial Building (Low Rise)
Dining Halls; Clubs; Restaurants
Educational Facilities; Classrooms
Field Houses; Gyms; Stadiums
Garages; Vehicle Maintenance

Structural Design; Special Structu.
Warehouses and Depots

Rehabilitation (Buildings, Structures
Recreation Facilities (Parks, etc.)
Prisons & Correctional Facilities
Office Buildings; Industrial Parks
Libraries; Museums; Galleries
Judicial and Courtroom Facilities
Industrial Buildings; Manufacturing
Housing (Residential, Apartments..
Hotels; Motels
Hospital and Medical Facilities
Historical Preservation
Harbors; Jetties; Piers; Ship Term

CADD Technicians
Structural Engineers

08
57

j.kostage@aespj.com

FL 32216

4 1
2
6

9

8
18

30

904.743.4633

1973 L6SNSQXMGJK1

Jude T. Kostage; Principal

2/5/2025

1
1
2
2
1
2
1
1
1
2
1
1
3
1
1
1
3
1
2
1
1
3

1
5
6
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PART II - GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS 
(If a firm has branch offices, complete for each specific branch office seeking work.)

a. SIGNATURE 

ARCHITECT-ENGINEER QUALIFICATIONS

2a.  FIRM (or Branch Office) NAME

2b.  STREET

2c.  CITY 2d.  STATE 2e.  ZIP CODE

3. YEAR ESTABLISHED 4. UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER 

5. OWNERSHIP

b. Discipline
c. Number of Employees

10. PROFILE OF FIRM'S EXPERIENCE
AND ANNUAL AVERAGE REVENUE FOR LAST 5 YEARS

b. Experience
c. Revenue Index

Number
(see below)

STANDARD FORM 330 (REV. 7/2021) PAGE 6

1. SOLICITATION NUMBER (If any)

8a.  FORMER FIRM NAME(S) (If any) 8b.  YEAR ESTABLISHED

9. EMPLOYEES BY DISCIPLINE

Total

(1) FIRM (2) BRANCH

1. Less than $100,000
2. $100,000 to less than $250,000
3. $250,000 to less than $500,000
4. $500,000 to less than $1 million
5. $1 million to less than $2 million

11. ANNUAL AVERAGE PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES REVENUES OF FIRM

FOR LAST 3 YEARS 
(Insert revenue index number shown at right)

7. NAME OF FIRM (If Block 2a is a Branch Office)
6a.  POINT OF CONTACT NAME AND TITLE

6c.  EMAIL ADDRESS

8c.  UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER

a. Federal Work
b. Non-Federal Work
c. Total Work

12. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
The foregoing is a statement of facts.

b. DATE

c. NAME AND TITLE

a. Function
Code

a. Profile
Code

6b.  TELEPHONE NUMBER

a. TYPE

b. SMALL BUSINESS STATUS

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUE INDEX NUMBER
6. $2 million to less than $5 million
7. $5 million to less than $10 million
8. $10 million to less than $25 million
9. $25 million to less than $50 million
10. $50 million or greater

Other Employees
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a. SIGNATURE
Digitally signed by Linda McCracken 
Date: 2025.02.04 18:44:38-07'00' 

b. DATE 
2/4/2025 

ARCHITECT-ENGINEER QUALIFICATIONS 
1. SOLICITATION NUMBER (If any) 

RFQ No, 2025 - 019 
PART II - GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS 

(If a firm has branch offices, complete for each specific branch office seeking work.) 
2a. FIRM (or Branch Office) NAME 

Creative Acoustics, LLC 
3. YEAR ESTABLISHED

2024 
4. UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER

MZKKXEKWJN43 
2b. STREET 

1032 Corte Aguila 
5. OWNERSHIP

a. TYPE 

LLC 2c. CITY 
Las Cruces 

2d. STATE 
NM 

2e. ZIP CODE 
88011 b. SMALL BUSINESS STATUS

 SBE 
7. NAME OF FIRM (If Block 2a is a Branch Office) 

6a. POINT OF CONTACT NAME AND TITLE 
Linda McCracken, Operations Officer 

6b. TELEPHONE NUMBER 
(203) 246-2440

6c. EMAIL ADDRESS 
Linda@creative-acoustics.com 

8a. FORMER FIRM NAME(S) (If any) 8b. YEAR ESTABLISHED 8c. UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER 
Creative Acoustics, LLC in State of Connecticut 

2000 MZKKXEKWJN43 

9. EMPLOYEES BY DISCIPLINE 10. PROFILE OF FIRM'S EXPERIENCE
AND ANNUAL AVERAGE REVENUE FOR LAST 5 YEARS 

a. Function
Code b. Discipline

c. Number of Employees a. Profile
Code b. Experience

c. Revenue Index
Number

(see below) (1) FIRM (2) BRANCH
01 Acoustical Engineer 1 A01 Acoustics, Noise Abatement 1 
02 Administrative 1 A11 Auditoriums, Theatres 2 

C06 Churches, Chapels 1 
C08 Codes, Standards, Ordinances 1 
D07 Dining Halls, Clubs, Restaurants 1 
E02 Education, Classrooms 2 
F02 Field Houses, Gyms 1 
H10 Hotels, Motels 1 
L04 Libraries 1 

Other Employees 
Total 2 

11. ANNUAL AVERAGE PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES REVENUES OF FIRM

FOR LAST 3 YEARS 
(Insert revenue index number shown at right) 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUE INDEX NUMBER 
1. Less than $100,000 6. $2 million to less than $5 million
2. $100,000 to less than $250,000 7. $5 million to less than $10 million
3. $250,000 to less than $500,000 8. $10 million to less than $25 million
4. $500,000 to less than $1 million 9. $25 million to less than $50 million
5. $1 million to less than $2 million 10. $50 million or greater

a. Federal Work 1 
b. Non-Federal Work 3 
c. Total Work 3

12. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
The foregoing is a statement of facts.

c. NAME AND TITLE
Linda McCracken, Operations Officer 
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a. SIGNATURE b. DATE

PART II - GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS 
(If a firm has branch offices, complete for each specific branch office seeking work.) 

2a. FIRM (or Branch Office) NAME 

Dharam Consulting LLC
3. YEAR ESTABLISHED

2023

4. UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER

93-4780442

2b. STREET 

6132 Vireoridge Dr.
5. OWNERSHIP

a. TYPE 
Limited Liability Company

2c. CITY 

Lithia
2d. STATE 

FL 

2e. ZIP CODE 

33547
b. SMALL BUSINESS STATUS

DBE6a. POINT OF CONTACT NAME AND TITLE 

Harpinder Lally, Managing Director 

7. NAME OF FIRM (If Block 2a is a Branch Office)

6b. TELEPHONE NUMBER 
718-913-9420

6c. EMAIL ADDRESS 
hlally@dharamconsulting.com 

8a. FORMER FIRM NAME(S) (If any) 8b. YEAR ESTABLISHED 8c. UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER 

9. EMPLOYEES BY DISCIPLINE
10. PROFILE OF FIRM'S EXPERIENCE

AND ANNUAL AVERAGE REVENUE FOR LAST 5 YEARS 

a. Function

Code
b. Discipline

c. Number of Employees a. Profile

Code
b. Experience

c. Revenue Index
Number

(see below)(1) FIRM (2) BRANCH

  18 Cost Engineer / Estimator  2   C18 Cost Estimating, Risk and Value Management   6 

  02 Administration  1

Other Employees 

Total 3 

11. ANNUAL AVERAGE PROFESSIONAL

SERVICES REVENUES OF FIRM

FOR LAST 3 YEARS 

(Insert revenue index number shown at right) 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUE INDEX NUMBER 

1. Less than $100,000 6. $2 million to less than $5 million

2. $100,000 to less than $250,000 7. $5 million to less than $10 million

3. $250,000 to less than $500,000 8. $10 million to less than $25 million

4. $500,000 to less than $1 million 9. $25 million to less than $50 million

5. $1 million to less than $2 million 10. $50 million or greater

a. Federal Work

b. Non-Federal Work

c. Total Work

12. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

The foregoing is a statement of facts.

a. NAME AND TITLE

Harpinder Lally, Managing Director

STANDARD FORM 330 (REV. 7/2021) PAGE 6 

1. SOLICITATION NUMBER (If any)

ARCHITECT-ENGINEER QUALIFICATIONS 

1/31/2025

1
3
3

2025-019
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VI. Projected Workload

PROJECTED WORKLOAD NARRATIVE

Mills + Schnoering Architects maintains an average of 30-40 active projects at any given time. We are 
accustomed to meeting concurrent deadlines and have the capacity and resources to manage this project 
workload. We have assembled an experienced, collaborative team that places the highest value on providing 
the Crest Theatre and the City of Delray Beach with an outstanding renovation of its facilities. Partners Michael 
Schnoering, FAIA and Amy Mladjen, IIDA, NCIDQ will lead our in-house team, demonstrating our highest level 
of commitment to this project.

M+Sa partners and project managers assign work to our experienced technical staff consistently over the 
course of each project, and our staff’s depth of experience allows additional personnel to be assigned to assist 
with deadlines when needed, under the supervision of the project manager. 

To help ensure timely completion of our projects, we review firm-wide project staffing on a monthly basis, 
along with weekly reviews of design team staffing requirements based on projected milestones and deadlines. 
We follow a process of project record-keeping and file and maintain documents in a consistent fashion so that 
projects run smoothly, allowing additional team members to join the project easily as needed. Our staff is 
small enough to provide a high level of care and attention to our projects with a meaningful level of partner 
involvement, yet large enough to design complex projects successfully in tight timeframes.

M+Sa’s staff proposed for the Renovation of the Crest Theatre are available and committed to meeting the City 
of Delray Beach’s project schedule. 

Similarly, our consultants all maintain a robust project workload, and would like to assure the City that this will 
not impact their dedication to the project at the Crest Theatre. They fully commit to providing resources for 
the entire duration of the project lifecycle, specifically within their defined scope of services. The City has their 
assurance that experienced and expert staff will be assigned to this work, ensuring the successful and timely 
completion of all deliverables. Our team values collaborative partnerships and looks forward to a productive 
relationship with the City on this important initiative.
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H. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

30. PROVIDE ANY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUESTED BY THE AGENCY. ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEETS AS NEEDED. 

APPROACH & METHODOLOGY 

Project Understanding 
We understand that the City of Delray Beach (the City) intends to renovate the 1925 Crest Theatre’s Auditorium, 
Stage, Boack-of-House (BOH), and Dressing Room spaces to modernize the facility to accommodate a range of 
programming. The Design Team’s services will include the requirements of the City of Delray’s RFQ No. 2025-
019, and information gathered at the January 15, 2025 walk-through and subsequent information received in 
the City’s Document “Questions & Answers – 1.” 

The project will include architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, theater systems, seating, 
acoustics, lighting, and audio/video systems. Each of these systems will be explored, estimated, detailed, bid, 
and constructed in Schematic Design through Construction Contract Administration Phases.  Improvements will 
be initially designed and tested against the construction budget of $4.5 million and reviewed from a practical 
construction and logistical standpoint to arrive at a focused Scope of Work that will be carried through design 
and construction. Improvements include the following: 

• Seating and accessibility improvements for auditorium and balcony.
• Lighting and finish upgrades.
• Accessibility improvements for access to seating, dressing rooms, and other BOH spaces.
• Finish and lighting upgrades throughout.
• New/improved HVAC systems.
• Theater house and stage lighting/dimming controls and fixtures.
• Rigging and drapery upgrades and/or replacement.
• Audio/Video (projection and sound) improvements to support productions.
• Stage loading access improvements (if required).

Design Team Service Locations: M+Sa will act as the Architect of Record and Design Architect for the project, 
and will perform services from its offices in Princeton, NJ and Philadelphia, PA. M+Sa will be assisted by Sarah 
Ryan Architect, LLC of St. Augustine, FL on building survey, local representation, design, and construction 
administration services.  

Other team members will provide services as follows: 

• Atlantic Engineering Services: Structural Engineering, Jacksonville, FL
• Powell and Hinkle: MEP/FP Engineering, Orange Park, FL
• Creative Acoustics: Acoustics, Las Cruces, NM
• Dharam Consulting: Cost Consulting, Lithia, FL
• Schuler Shook: Theater/Lighting and AV Design, New York, NY

Design Team Access and City Engagement: M+Sa’s design process relies on significant contact with City 
representatives throughout the life of the project. We begin by establishing a schedule that includes detailed 
information on meetings and design reviews with the City, on-site surveys, code research, design activities, 
estimating periods, page-turn reviews, and internal City review time in each phase of the project. The schedule 
is a primary focus and tool of the design team to establish milestones and maintain momentum and is 
maintained by M+Sa and reviewed at every progress meeting. Meetings with the City will be held both online 
and in-person.  

Sarah Ryan Architect, LLC will work in association with M+Sa, acting as an extension of M+Sa’s office in the 
region. Immediate/emergent project needs for on-site meetings with the City or at the project site will be 
staffed in this manner. 74



Prescheduled on-site meetings and other in-person meetings with City representatives will be attended by staff 
of M+Sa, Sarah Ryan Architects, and as appropriate, members of the consulting design team. M+Sa’s extensive 
experience with performing arts projects guides us in determining the appropriate level of contact for 
programming, design, estimating, detailing, and construction administration services. This leads to a rational, 
effective, and efficient process that facilitates team building and collaboration, knowledge and idea sharing, 
discussion and design decision-making, and resourceful and organized construction observation and inspection 
services. 

Schedule: The schedule and proposed personnel assigned to the Crest Theatre project reflect our broad 
experience and knowledge of the complexities involved in the time, planning, renovation, and expansion of 
existing theaters. Team members are currently engaged in various civic, institutional, and cultural projects; and 
we have carefully considered project and staffing commitments to these projects when establishing the project 
team and personnel to be assigned to this project.  

Staffing and project needs are continuously monitored throughout the project. This includes weekly office 
staffing meetings and project meetings with the Partner in Charge and Project Manager to review schedule, 
deliverable dates and staffing requirements. Further, M+Sa implements a Quality Assurance (QA) and Quality 
Control (QC) Plan on all our projects that is effective in maintaining quality and schedule, and proactively 
identifies emerging and ongoing challenges.  

A proposed draft schedule indicating Schematic Design through Construction Document phases, Bidding and 
Negotiation, and Construction Administration activities follows in Tab VII. The project schedule is one of the 
primary tools that we utilize to establish goals and milestones for the project, obtain buy-in from all project 
team members, and maintain momentum. The schedule and deliverable dates are reviewed at the initial kick-off 
meeting and at all subsequent phase kick-off and design meetings and will be constantly monitored and 
reviewed with the design team during the project. Definitive dates for cost estimating, bidding and negotiation 
and construction activities will be established with the input of the City early in the project design phases so that 
a target for completion of Construction Documents is established, understood, and agreed to by all. 

Construction Cost Budget and Cost Control:  The current Construction Budget is $4.5 million, which may be 
adjusted by the City as the Scope of Work for the project is further refined. Recent and ongoing market 
escalation may require adjustment of the scope of work to maintain the budget. It is our intent to work 
collectively with the City to identify a reasonable and appropriate work package for estimating in the initial 
Schematic Design Phase, and to further identify reasonable alternates for items that may be added or removed 
depending on the outcome of bidding.  

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Throughout the Crest Theatre project, we will rely on a thorough, measured, and methodical approach to 
information gathering to set the project and all project team participants on the path to a successful project.  

Following are the proposed components of our planning, coordination, and design services. 

Project Team Kick-off Meetings: Each phase noted below will begin with a kick-off meeting to review schedule 
and budget issues, possible/required design revisions, and other relevant information. This meeting will be 
conducted with City representatives and the Design Team. At the initial Schematic Design Phase Kick-off, any 
requirements for the programmatic needs of the project will be reviewed. 

Building Survey and Documentation: At the start of the project, M+Sa and its consultant team will do the 
following: 

• Perform a laser scan of the relevant areas of the building and create a 3D Revit model for use in design
and construction documentation of the project.

• Perform a visual building survey to confirm conditions and review other detail conditions, including any
probe areas, to facilitate design and detailing.
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• Prepare the background drawing files for use by the project team throughout the project. M+Sa will
produce and maintain the background Revit model and will update this model throughout the phases to
provide all consultants with up-to-date design information.

Project Team Coordination: Throughout each phase, M+Sa will hold regular design and coordination meetings 
with the City and the Design Team to help ensure coordination and design consistency and to promote 
cooperation. Design meetings with the City are anticipated to be held in-person and virtually. 

Schematic Design  
• In this phase, we will confirm programmatic needs; review and confirm building conditions; prepare

base drawings for use on the project; and provide design drawings for review, discussion, and
estimating. The final outcome of the phase, with a scope of work and budget approved by the City, will
be the basis of subsequent phases of design and construction. Provisions will be made to accommodate
and facilitate future construction and system upgrades. The goal will be to complete a comprehensive
and impactful initial phase of construction that respects the budget and supports the mission of the
City.

• The Schematic Design (SD) documents will illustrate the scale and relationship of the project
components. The SD activity will involve further evaluation of the building and design options for the
planned renovations and additions. The deliverable documents will include floor plans, building
elevations, sections, as well as outline specifications and building system descriptions for all the required
engineering, including  theater, acoustics, AV, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing and fire
protection. It will also include a code study to confirm and establish applicable requirements.

• An area analysis will be performed based on the revised SD drawings to show current and proposed
spaces.

• Estimate of Probable Construction Cost: M+Sa and its consulting team will work with Dharam Consulting
on the Estimate of Probable Construction Cost. The estimate will be reviewed by all consultants and
comments/adjustments will be reviewed with Dharam. If design adjustments are needed, M+Sa will
work with the City and Dharam to identify items for review.

• Should the City’s review of development goals and the budget identify the need for scope reductions,
M+Sa will work to identify areas of work to be deleted or to be separated as alternates.

• Schematic Design Phase Meetings: The Design Team will attend One (1) onsite Kick-off meeting
(including Programming interviews) and up to three (3) design and estimate review meetings.

Design Development 
• The Design Development (DD) documents will be based on the approved Schematic Design documents,

including the Estimate of Probable Construction Cost. The DD documents will establish and refine the
scope relationships, forms, size and appearance of the project using plans, sections and elevations, and
will include typical construction details such as wall sections, roof details, partition types, finish
selections, lighting details, and preliminary systems sizing and layout. These documents will further
establish quality levels for all components of the project. We anticipate continuing to work with the City
to ensure that documents reflect a dynamic and sustainable design that meets the needs of the users,
while remaining consistent with the established budget.

• Estimate of Probable Construction Cost: M+Sa and its consulting team will develop the Estimate of
Probable Construction Cost. The estimate will be reviewed by all consultants and
comments/adjustments will be reviewed and incorporated as needed. If design adjustments are needed,
M+Sa will work with the City to identify items for review.

• Design Development Phase Meetings: The Design Team will attend one (1) Kick-off Meeting and up to
three (3) design and estimate review meetings.

Construction Documents 
• A Construction Document package will be produced for the project. A 50% completion set will be issued

to the City for review and the Design Team will update the estimate. Assuming the project is on budget,
a final 100% Construction Document package will be produced and will include drawings and
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specifications suitable for competitive bidding and permit review. During this phase we will submit 
progress documents for review to ensure compliance with the program. 

• Construction Document Phase Meetings: The Design Team will attend one (1) Kick-off Meeting and up
to three (3) design and estimate review meetings.

Bidding and Permit Review Phase 
• During the Bidding Phase, M+Sa will assist the City in obtaining competitive bids by providing copies of

the documents (hardcopy or electronic); attending the Pre-Bid conference; addressing Requests for
Information; and issuing Addenda as required.

• During permit review M+Sa will provide signed and sealed construction documents and will address
Code Official comments.

• Bidding and Negotiation Phase Meetings: One (1) pre-bid conference and two virtual bid review
meetings.

Construction Contract Administration 
• The Design Team will provide CA services in accordance with the City’s requirements. Sarah Ryan

Architects’ Mark McConnel, AIA is a Florida licensed architect and licensed contractor and will represent
the Design team on-site, attending project meetings and site visits as needed throughout construction.
M+Sa and Sarah Ryan Architects will review change orders and applications for payments, review the
progress and quality of the work, respond to RFIs, issue clarification sketches as needed, review shop
drawings and submittals, perform substantial and final completion inspections, and will issue the
certificate of substantial completion. M+Sa’s consultants will assist with each of these services and will
attend project meetings and site visits as appropriate to the stage of the work.

Design Disciplines: Professional Services Provided 
• Architecture and Design Team Management: M+Sa will coordinate all aspects of the project with the

design team’s consultants and will be responsible for developing the overall design of the project.
Consultants will report to M+Sa and meet regularly to review systems design, integration, and
performance/visual requirements. M+Sa will maintain the design schedule and report to the City on a
regular basis to inform on progress and obtain approvals for design intent and details during each phase.

• MEP/FP will provide design, detailing, and specifications to accommodate renovations and additions.
Consulting engineers will coordinate with Design Team members on renovated and new systems to
accommodate new layouts, additions, and other related design issues.

• Structural will provide design, detailing, and specifications to accommodate renovations, additions,
equipment loads, and other related loads. Geotechnical services will be provided by others (if needed).
The structural engineer may require additional geotechnical services to inform underpinning and other
foundation design services.

• Theater/Acoustics/Audio-Video:
o Theater

1. Consult on house seating replacement and accessible upgrades, performance lighting
control and locations, tech booth and other control locations. BOH services to include
new rigging, draperies, performance lighting and controls, and other related items.

2. Provide budget estimates for rigging, drapery, and performance lighting systems for
each of the phase estimates for Owner and Design Team review.

o Acoustics: Consult on primary space acoustics; physical separations at lobby/theater, and MEP
systems. 

o Audio-Video
1. Consult and specify systems noted in budget, including backstage call/page, assisted

listening, and other similar systems.
2. Review needs for video monitor system and provide design, specification.
3. Consult on and specify projection/sound and public address systems as needed.
4. Provide budget estimates for each of the phase estimates for Owner and team review.

• Lighting: M+Sa will consult on design, specification, and control of interior and exterior architectural
lighting (all spaces). 77



31. SIGNATURE 32. DATE 

• Estimating: M+Sa’s Cost Consultant will develop comprehensive estimates at 100% SD, DD, and 50% CD
phases. Design team members will provide consulting services during review of each estimate to provide
revisions based on design team comments.

• Interior Finishes: M+Sa will select and specify all interior finishes, including paint for the auditorium, and
will review all options with the City for interim and final approvals. M+Sa will also design and detail all
Back-of House built-in casework, including cabinetry, counters, shelving, and other similar custom items.

• Wayfinding Signage and Donor Recognition: M+Sa will provide design, specification, and detailing for all
code-related and basic room identification signage.

I. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
The foregoing is a statement of facts.

33. NAME AND TITLE

STANDARD FORM 330 (REV. 7/2021) PAGE 5 

Michael R. Schnoering, FAIA, Partner

2/10/2025
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ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Notice to Proceed 0 days Mon 4/7/25 Mon 4/7/25

2 Contracts and Project Admin 10 days Mon 4/7/25 Fri 4/18/25
3 Document Building and Create Base Drawings 15 days Mon 4/7/25 Fri 4/25/25
4 Schematic Design 85 days Tue 4/29/25 Mon 8/25/25

5 Kick‐off Meeting, Programming, and Survey (On‐site) 0 days Tue 4/29/25 Tue 4/29/25
6 Identify and Execute Probes 10 days Tue 4/29/25 Mon 5/12/25
7 Develop schematic plans, elevations, sections. 35 days Tue 4/29/25 Mon 6/16/25
8 Code Review and documentation 15 days Tue 4/29/25 Mon 5/19/25
9 Design Mtg with City 0 days Mon 6/16/25 Mon 6/16/25
10 Final SD deliverables, inclduing Basis of Design Narrative 15 days Tue 6/17/25 Mon 7/7/25
11 Estimate and Estimate Review Mtg 25 days Tue 7/8/25 Mon 8/11/25
12 City Presentation and City Review 10 days Tue 8/12/25 Mon 8/25/25
13 Design Development 75 days Mon 8/25/25 Mon 12/8/25

14 Kick‐off meeting 0 days Mon 8/25/25 Mon 8/25/25
15 Materials/Product Research 20 days Tue 8/26/25 Mon 9/22/25
16 Design Development Drawings 40 days Tue 8/26/25 Mon 10/20/25
17 Preliminary finish/lighting selections 18 days Tue 8/26/25 Thu 9/18/25
18 Design Mtg with City 0 days Thu 9/18/25 Thu 9/18/25
19 Preliminary Specifications 20 days Tue 8/26/25 Mon 9/22/25
20 Design Mtg with City 0 days Mon 10/20/25 Mon 10/20/25
21 Estimate and Estimate Review Mtg (virtual) 25 days Tue 10/21/25 Mon 11/24/25
22 City Presentation and City Review 10 days Tue 11/25/25 Mon 12/8/25
23 Construction Documents 75 days Mon 12/8/25 Mon 3/23/26

24 Kick‐off meeting 0 days Mon 12/8/25 Mon 12/8/25
25 50% CDS  Pre‐Final Finishes, Lighting, and Construction Details 30 days Tue 12/9/25 Mon 1/19/26
26 50% CD Estimate and Esitmate Review 25 days Tue 1/20/26 Mon 2/23/26
27 Finalize Specifications and Prep CD Package for CM Bidding/Permits 20 days Tue 2/24/26 Mon 3/23/26
28 Bidding/Contract 50 days Mon 4/6/26 Fri 6/12/26

29 PreBid Conference 0 days Mon 4/6/26 Mon 4/6/26
30 Bid Period (TBD based on City Schedule) 30 days Mon 4/6/26 Fri 5/15/26
31 Review, Negotiation, and Award 20 days Mon 5/18/26 Fri 6/12/26
32 Construction Contract Administration 290 days Mon 6/15/26 Fri 7/23/27

33 Permit Review 30 days Mon 6/15/26 Fri 7/24/26
34 Preconstruction Meeting 0 days Mon 7/27/26 Mon 7/27/26
35 General Construction 240 days Mon 7/27/26 Fri 6/25/27
36 Punchlist/Training/Closeout 20 days Mon 6/28/27 Fri 7/23/27
37 Final Completion 0 days Fri 7/23/27 Fri 7/23/27

4/7

4/29

6/16

8/25

9/18

10/20

12/8

4/6

7/27

7/23

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4
2025 2026 2027

Crest Theatre Renovation
Preliminary Project Schedule

Notes:
1. All durations are in WORKING DAYS.
2. Meeting dates are TBD.

Mills + Schnoering Architects 12 February 2025
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